PM-LOGON Manual

www.siemens.com

SIEMENS

Table of contents

1	Introduction.		4
-	1.1 D	escription	4
	1.2	icensing	4
2	Installation	i se ne ng	4
-	2.1Ir	stallation prerequisites	
	2.2 C	configuration of SIMATIC LOGON	5
	2.3 Ir	Installation	6
	2.4 P	MSecurityService	7
3	PM-LOGON	Configurator	8
•	3.1 Ir	atroduction	8
	3.2C	onfiguration	8
	3.2.1	Import of User Packages	10
	3.2.2	Maintaining the list of allowed UIDs	12
	3.2.3	Configuration of the SIMATIC RE1040R/RE1060R/RE1070R REID card reader	13
	3.2.4	Configuration of the Admitto USB reader	14
	3.2.5	Configuration of the Admitto-C TCP/IP reader	16
	3.2.6	Configuration of a generic COM port reader	17
	327	Configuration of a generic PCSC card reader	19
	328	Mobile Login	20
	3.2.8	1 Configuration of the Mobile Login Web Service	21
	328	2 Configuration of the Mobile Login QR-Generator ActiveX Control	23
	3.2.8.	3 Installation of the Mobile Login App	27
	328	4 Assigning a mobile device to a user	
	3.2.9	Configuration of a RE521 reader	33
	3.2.10	Configuration of a Teratron RFID reader	34
	3.2.11	Configuration of an Euchner FKS USB Reader	35
	3.2.12	Configuration of an active directory	36
	3.2.13	Configuration of the local user management	39
	3.2.14	Checking the configuration	42
	3.2.15	Operation	
	3.2.16	PM-LOGON Configurator self administration mode	
	3.2.17	Diagnostics	48
4	PM-LOGON	Runtime	49
•	4.1Ir	troduction	
	4.2A	pplication window	49
	4.3C	onfiguration	50
	4.3.1	Configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime Web Service	52
	4.3.2	User specific configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime	52
	4.3.3	Configuration of the SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R RFID card reader	53
	4.3.4	Configuration of the Admitto USB reader	53
	4.3.5	Configuration of the Admitto-C TCP/IP reader	53
	4.3.6	Configuration of a generic COM port reader	53
	4.3.7	Configuration of a generic PCSC card reader	53
	4.3.8	Configuration of the Mobile Login Web Service	53
	4.3.9	Configuration of a RF521 RFID reader	53
	4.3.10	Configuration of a Teratron RFID reader	53
	4.3.11	Configuration of an Euchner EKS USB Reader	53
	4.3.12	Configuration of an Active Directory	53
	4.3.13	Configuration of the local user management	54
	4.3.14	Configuration of a remote PM-LOGON runtime	55
	4.3.15	Configuration of the SIMATIC Logon provider	61
	Sigmono AC		

	4.3.16 Configuration of the WinCCViewerRT provider	. 64
	4.3.17 Configuration of the OPC and SOAP access provider	. 67
	4.3.17.1 SOAP access	.71
	4.3.17.2 OPC DA access	.73
	4.3.17.3 OPC UA Access	.74
	4.3.17.4 TIA project configuration	.76
	4.3.18 Configuration of the BRAUMAT/SISTAR Provider	. 78
	4.3.19 Configuration of the Generic Dll Logon Provider	. 79
	4.3.20 Configuration of the Windows Logon Provider	. 81
	4.4Diagnostics	. 82
	4.5Operation	. 83
5	PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels	. 84
	5.1Introduction	. 84
	5.2 Installation on a Comfort Panel	. 84
	5.3Configuration	. 86
	5.3.1 PM-LOGON Runtime	. 86
	5.3.2 TIA portal project	. 87
	5.3.3 MiniWeb	. 89
	5.3.4 PM-LOGON Configurator for Panels	. 90
	5.4Diagnostics	. 94
6	Changing the login password from a WinCC screen	. 95
	6.1Introduction	. 95
	6.2Creating the WinCC screen	. 96
	6.3VB Scripts	. 98
	6.4 Further methods PM-LOGON Runtime COM Interface	. 99
7	Key Management	100
	7.1Introduction	100
	7.2 Staging a user-defined key	100
	7.3 Distributing the user-defined key	102
	7.4Rekeying the user repository	103
	7.5 Activating the user-defined key	106
8	Backup/Restore of a user repository	108
	8.1Create a backup of the user repository	108
	8.2 Restore a backup of the user repository	108
9	PM-LOGON Server	110
	9.1Introduction	110
	9.2 Application Window	110
	9.3Configuration	111
	9.3.1 Configuration of the Webservices	112
	9.3.2 Certificate management	113
	9.3.3 Diagnosis	114
	9.3.4 Configuration of Logon Devices	115
	9.3.4.1 PM-LOGON Runtime as a Logon Device	116
	9.3.5 Configuring the User Repository	117
	9.3.6 Configuration of the Logon Providers	118
	9.3.6.1 PM-LOGON Runtime as a Logon Provider	118
	9.3.7 Configuration of Logon Mapping Groups	120
	9.3.8 Configuration of Logon Mappings	120

1 Introduction

1.1 Description

By using PM-LOGON, users from an active directory can login into e.g. SIMATIC Logon with an RFID card. The PM-LOGON Configurator application is used to associate active directory accounts to RFID-cards. To setup this association the unique id of the RFID card and the password of the user that is to be used for the login are stored in encrypted format within the user management. The PM-LOGON Runtime application then retrieves the associated user and password by using the unique id of the card presented to the reading device and uses these credentials to perform the login operation into SIMATIC Logon, the WinCC Web Navigator Client application or the TIA Runtime Advanced.

1.2 Licensing

Each installation of the PM-LOGON Configurator requires a separate license. The number of licensed users that can login via RFID card is independently defined from the PM-LOGON Configurator license by so called User Packages. Existing Client Packages already purchased with PM-LOGON V1.x can still be used with PM-LOGON V2.

The PM-LOGON Runtime can be operated on any number of suitable devices without a separate license.

Furthermore, a license is required for each instance of PM-LOGON Server.

2 Installation

2.1 Installation prerequisites

SIMATIC Logon 1.5/1.6 SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R or Admitto card reader (USB) in the operation mode "active send" or OmniKey USB Smart Card Reader (e.g. OMNIKEY 5021 CL) Teratron PC-Loc Reader Euchner EKS USB Reader Windows 7 32/64 bit SP1 or later or Windows Server 2008 32/64 bit or later

Please also note the current product information from PM-LOGON.

2.2 Configuration of SIMATIC LOGON

Please make sure, that in SIMATIC LOGON configuration "Logon via keyboard" is set as logon device.

Configure SIMATIC Logon	8			
General Working environment Logon device Automatic logoff Diagnostics				
Logon via keyboard				
C Logon via the following smart card reader:				
WinCC smart card reader on COM4				
🗖 Do not permit alternative logon using keyboard.				
C Logon via another device				
🔲 Do not permit alternative logon using keyboard.				
Use on-screen keyboard				
OK Apply Cancel Help				



2.3 Installation

The setup application "PM-LOGON Setup.exe" is located on the installation media in the folder "V2":

Within the setup wizard, the required scope of the installation can be defined:



Runtime installs the PM-LOGON Runtime – This is the application that is required for the login process. Furthermore, the runtime can be used as a relaying gateway for providing login credentials over its integrated web service for other runtimes, running on remote comfort panels.

Configurator installs the application PM-LOGON Configurator, which organizes the association of operator logins and the corresponding RFID cards.

Server installs PM-LOGON Server.

2.4 PMSecurityService

During the installation of PM-LOGON the service "PMSecurityService" is also installed. During the installation of the service, a user named "PMSecurityService" is automatically installed and assigned to the service as the execution account. The user is created with a randomly generated password and associated to the local administrators group.

If the machine is a member of a domain, the group policies may need to be adjusted so that the "PMSecurityService" user remains in the local administrators group.

Important notice:

A change of the service execution account of the PMSecurityService or a change of the password of the execution account may cause that the data stored in the user repository can no longer be read!

3 PM-LOGON Configurator

3.1 Introduction

The PM-LOGON Configurator application is used to associate active directory users to RFIDcards. The user accounts must be already present in the active directory. Each installation of the Configurator requires a separate license. If the PM-LOGON Configurator is used without a valid license it switches into a test mode where it allows associating only one user account to an RFID card in order to test the compatibility of readers, cards, login method etc.

3.2 Configuration

You can start the application PM-LOGON Configurator with the corresponding link that has been created from the setup process in the start menu. After launching the application you will be asked to login. For this login any user that is either locally or within the domain defined as a member of the "Logon_Administrator" group may be used. When a domain account is used, the name of the domain user needs to be prefixed with the domain name ("<domain>\cuser>").The most recent user that has been logged in is stored as a default and is used to pre-fill the user name when the application is started the next time.

PM-LOGON Configu	rator 🔋 🔀
	Ger
Enter your credential	5:
User name:	🔮 domain \Logon Admin 🔹
Password:	•••••
	OK Cancel

When started for the first time, a warning message will be displayed that no login device has been configured yet.



Open the configuration of PM-LOGON Configurator by using the menu item File->Configuration. The settings dialog of PM-LOGON Configurator will be displayed.

🔀 Settings		×
Configuration Configuration Configuration Admitto USB Reader Admitto C TCP/IP Reader Canenic COM Port Reader Canenic COM Port Reader Noble Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader Caret Operator Service Active Directory Local Computer	Summay Packages Logging Allowed UIDs Logon Device: BRP RFID Reader User Repository: Active Directory Total Package Size: 50 Program Data Folder: C:\FrogramData\Siemens\Process Management\FM\LOGON Restrict UIDs	
		Close

The tree view on the left side allows you to navigate over the different configuration sections.

The element labeled "Configuration" opens the general configuration settings of PM-LOGON Configurator.

The summary page displays the logon device and the user repository that is currently being used by PM-LOGON Configurator.

The link allows you to navigate to the path in the file system where the configuration data is stored.

The page with the title "Packages" allows you to manage the User Packages that define the number of users that can log in via an RFID card.

The "Logging" page allows you to activate the writing of diagnostic trace information into log files if needed.

The "Allowed UIDs" page allows you to maintain the list of allowed UIDs for the Configurator. This list determines the UIDs, that are allowed to be assigned to a user within the Configurator.

The element "Logon Devices" navigates to an overview of all currently supported login devices. Underneath this element the configuration sections for the individual login devices are located.

The element "User Repositories" navigates to the configuration section for the supported user management systems. Underneath this element the configuration sections for the individual user management repositories are located.

PM-LOGON has a plug-in concept that allows the system to be expanded in order to support additional reading devices and user repositories.

3.2.1 Import of User Packages

The licensed number of users that can log in by using a RFID card and managed with "PM-LOGON Configurator" is defined by the number of users defined by the installed User Packages. User Packages are digitally signed xml files. In order to activate a User Package you have to import it into the PM-LOGON Configurator. In order to do this, navigate to the "Configuration" element and open the page with the tile "Packages".

To import a User Package click on the button labeled "Import", which opens a file selection dialog. Select the User Package file to import and open it. After the package has been successfully imported it will be displayed in the list of installed packages. Also the number of totally available users will be updated accordingly at the bottom of the page.

The User Packages that you have ordered together with your PM-LOGON package are delivered to you by email.

🔀 Settings						\times
Configuration	Summary Packag	es Logging Allowed UIDs				
Logon Devices Admitto USB Reader	Packages					
Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader	Refresh Import	t				
 BRP RFID Reader Euchner EKS USB Reader 	Valid Dupli	cate Product Version	Issue Date	Package Size	Package File	_
Generic COM Port Reader	True False	1	12/10/2016 14:52:20	50	C:\ProgramData\Siemens\Process Management\PM-LOGON\Configurator\C	i
 Generic PCSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader 						
 Mobile Login Web Service 						
 RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader 						
🖃 👪 User Repositories						
Active Directory Local Computer						
	Total size: 50					_
					Close	

Description of the displayed columns:

• Valid:

Indicates that the User Package has been recognized as a valid license file and the signature has been successfully validated.

• Duplicate:

Indicates if the packages has been already imported by using another file name.



- Product Version: Product version of PM-LOGON this User Package is applicable to.
- Issue Date: Issuing date of the package.
- Package Size: Number of users licensed by this package.
- Package File: File location of the package file.

Underneath the list of installed packages the total number of users licensed by all installed packages is displayed.

3.2.2 Maintaining the list of allowed UIDs

The list of allowed UIDs determines, which UIDs are allowed to be assigned to a user within the Configurator if activated on the summary page.

To import a list of UIDs click on the Import button and select a text file, containing a single UID per line.

A single UID read by a attached card reader can be added by clicking the button Read UID. Delete UIDs from the list by selecting one ore multiple lines and clicking the Delete button.

\overline Kettings	<u> </u>
Configuration Co	Summary Packages Logging Allowed UIDs Refresh Import Read UID Delete Allowed UID IDAD03DF IDCE04CF IDCE04CF IDCE02C0 IDCE04CF

3.2.3 Configuration of the SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R RFID card reader

The element labeled "BRP RFID Reader" allows the configuration of a connected SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R card reader device.

6 Settings	
Configuration Configuration Admitto-USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Euchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Nobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader Cuser Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime READINAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon WinCCViewerRT	BRP RFID Reader Configuration Configuration Reverse UID: AutoRead Mode: (reads a configured block instead of card UID) Communication interface Image: USB Automatic device selection Select device manually Rs232 COM 1 Test reader Current UID: Connect

The setting "Reverse UID" instructs PM-LOGON to reverse the byte ordering of the unique id that has been read from the device. This might be required if the reader is used together with other reading devices that sometimes transmit the unique id of the card in reversed byte ordering. If this cannot be configured on the other reading device, it can be compensated here by activating this checkbox.

If the option "AutoRead Mode" is activated the reader doesn't read the card UID but automatically reads a configured memory block depending on the card type. For this it is necessary that the reader is prepared with an "AutoRead" configuration.

In the section "Communication interface" it is possible to select the interface through which PM-LOGON communicates with the connected reader.

- USB (RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R): In most cases the setting "Automatic device selection" is sufficient. If the automatic device selection fails, the hardware ID of the reader can be specified here.
- RS232 (RF1040R/RF1070R): The virtual COM port, which is generated by the driver of the reader in the system, must be set. The correct port can be determined via the Windows Device Manager in the section "Ports (COM & LPT)".

The elements in the section "Test Reader" can be used to test the reader for correct operation. In order to start the test, click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the reading device. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the card into the detection range of the reader.

The initial connection attempt to the device might fail but this can be safely ignored.

In order to use the reader it must be selected as the standard device by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022

3.2.4 Configuration of the Admitto USB reader

The element labeled "Admitto USB Reader" allows the configuration of a connected Admitto USB card reader device.

Settings		
Configuration Configuration Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader BRP RFID Reader Conner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic PCSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader Suser Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Remote PM-LOGON Runtime BRAUMAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon WinCCViewerRT	Admitto Reader Configurati Configuration COM Port: Reverse UID: Use phg_crypt Protocol: Test reader Current UID:	on COM4 COM4 Connect

The communication with the Admitto USB reader is established over a virtual COM port. This COM port is only present when the device is connected to the PC. Therefore, make sure that the device is connected and the appropriate COM port is selected. The virtual COM port that is created by the device driver of the Admitto USB reader can be determined in the device manager of the Windows operating system.

The setting "Reverse UID" instructs PM-LOGON to reverse the byte ordering of the unique id that has been read from the device. This might be required if the reader is used together with other reading devices that sometimes transmit the unique id of the card in reversed byte ordering. If this cannot be configured on the other reading device, it can be compensated here by activating this checkbox.

If the Admitto USB reader is equipped with a Firmware that supports the phg_crypt protocol, the setting "Use phg_crypt Protocol" enables PM-LOGON to communicate with the Admitto USB reader using this specific protocol.

The elements in the section "Test Reader" can be used to test the reader for correct operation. In order to start the test click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the reading device. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the card into the detection range of the reader.

In order to use the reader it must be selected as the standard device by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.



3.2.5 Configuration of the Admitto-C TCP/IP reader

The element labeled "Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader" allows the configuration of a connected Admitto-C TCP/IP card reader device.

	🔞 Settings	
Image: Configuration Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Image: BRP RFID Reader Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Image: BRP RFID Reader Image: Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Image: Generic PCSC Reader Port: Image: BRF521 Reader Reverse UID: Image: Breader Test reader Image: Breader Test reader Image: Breader Current UID: Image: Breader Connect Image: Breader <	 Configuration Logon Devices Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader BRP RFID Reader BRP RFID Reader Generic COM Pot Reader Generic PCSC Reader Mobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader User Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Logon Providers BRAUMAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon Windows Logon Provider 	Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration Configuration IP-Address: Port: 10001 🖨 Reverse UID: Test reader Current UID: Connect

The communication with the Admitto-C TCP/IP reader is established over a TCP connection. Establishing a connection is only possible if the reader is connected to a network, over which the computer can reach the reader. This must be done by using an ethernet cable and the designated connector on the reader. Also, make sure the reader is powered over an USB-cable. Before the connection can be established, you must enter the reader's IP-Address in the field "IP-Address" and the port, which is configured in the readers own configuration, in the field "Port". You can get this information about the reader with the tool "Device Installer" from Lantronix. The reader itself is configured with the port 10001 by default.

The setting "Reverse UID" instructs PM-LOGON to reverse the byte ordering of the unique id that has been read from the device. This might be required if the reader is used together with other reading devices that sometimes transmit the unique id of the card in reversed byte ordering. If this cannot be configured on the other reading device, it can be compensated here by activating this checkbox.

The elements in the section "Test Reader" can be used to test the reader for correct operation. In order to start the test, click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the reading device. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the card into the detection range of the reader.

In order to use the reader, it must be selected as the standard device by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.

Settings		
Configuration Co	Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Configuration	Connect

3.2.6 Configuration of a generic COM port reader

There are various reading devices available that establish a communication channel to the PC by creating a virtual COM port from the device driver. For such devices the element "Generic COM Port Reader" can be used.

A precondition for this configuration type is that the reading device is actively sending the serial number (unique id) of the card as soon as it is brought into the detection range of the reader.

Settings					
Configuration Configuration Admitto USB Reader BRP RFID Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic PCSC Re Set as def Active Directory Local Computer	Generic COM Port Re Configuration COM Port: ault UID: RegEx for UID: RegEx for UID left: Test reader Current UID:	ader Configuration COM1			
		Clear Connect Cose			

Select the serial (COM) port the reader has been connected to. Virtual COM ports that are generated by the device driver can be determined by using the device manager of the Windows operating system.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022

The setting "Reverse UID" instructs PM-LOGON to reverse the byte ordering of the unique id that has been read from the device. This might be required if the reader is used together with other reading devices that sometimes transmit the unique id of the card in reversed byte ordering. If this cannot be configured on the other reading device, it can be compensated here by activating this checkbox.

The reader delivers a data stream at the serial port connection when a card is detected and removed. To interpret the data sent from the device in order to filter out the unique id of the card, a regular expression is used. A description how regular expressions can be built in order to filter data from continuous text streams can be found under the following URL:

https://msdn.microsoft.com/de-de/library/hs600312(v=vs.110).aspx

In order to filter out the unique card id of the data stream sent when the card enters the detection range of the reader a regular expression must be entered into "RegEx for UID". Optionally the reader might also send a data stream when the card leaves the detection range. The data that is expected to be sent on this event needs to be entered into the field "RegEx for UID left".

In order to precisely match the unique id of the card contained in the data sent from the reader a so called "Named Matched Subexpression" with the name "UID" is used. That means that the data stream might contain additional control characters like e.g. STX and ETX which are not part of the unique card id. In this way it is possible to separate the data that is expected when the card enters the reader field and which part of this data represents the unique id.

A detailed description of "Named Matched Subexpressions" can e.g. be found under the URL:

https://msdn.microsoft.com/dede/library/bs2twtah(v=vs.110).aspx#named_matched_subexpression

In the example above, everything that is sent from the reader is treated as the unique id.

If you want to test the regular expressions you have been creating you may also test them under e.g. <u>https://regex101.com/</u>.

Make sure, no control characters (e.g. CR LF) are included in the result of the match.

The elements in the section "Test Reader" can be used to test the reader for correct operation. In order to start the test click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the reading device. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the card into the detection range of the reader.

In order to use the reader it must be selected as the standard device by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.

3.2.7 Configuration of a generic PCSC card reader

The element labeled "Generic PCSC Reader" allows the configuration of a connected PCSC card reader device (e.g. Omnikey).

\overline Settings	
Configuration Co	Generic PCSC Reader Configuration Configuration Reader: Reverse UID: Test reader Current UID: Connect Connect

Please select the appropriate reader from the list of detected compatible reading devices.

The setting "Reverse UID" instructs PM-LOGON to reverse the byte ordering of the unique id that has been read from the device. This might be required if the reader is used together with other reading devices that sometimes transmit the unique id of the card in reversed byte ordering. If this cannot be configured on the other reading device, it can be compensated here by activating this checkbox.

The elements in the section "Test Reader" can be used to test the reader for correct operation. In order to start the test click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the reading device. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the card into the detection range of the reader.

In order to use the reader it must be selected as the standard device by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.

3.2.8 Mobile Login

PM-LOGON Mobile Login enables a user to log in to WinCC via a mobile device. The user is authenticated via the IMEI of his mobile device, which serves as UID. Three components are required for this: The Mobile Login QR-Generator ActiveX Control in a WinCC image, the Mobile Login App on the user's mobile device and the Mobile Login Web Service in the PM-LOGON Runtime. In addition, a logon provider that enables logon to WinCC must be used, e.g. SIMATIC-Logon (see chapter 4.3.15). Mobile Login cannot be used together with Windows Logon Provider.

The authentication process is as follows:



- 1. By clicking the login button, the QR-Generator sends a request to the web service.
- 2. The web service responds with a URL, via which the Mobile Login App can reach the web service.
- 3. The QR-Generator generates and displays the QR code.
- 4. The user scans the QR code with the Mobile Login App on his device.
- 5. The Mobile Login App sends a request to the web service and passes the IMEI of the device.
- 6. The web service receives the request and passes the IMEI as UID to the PM-LOGON Runtime.

3.2.8.1 Configuration of the Mobile Login Web Service

The element labeled "Mobile Login Web Service" allows the configuration of the Mobile Login Web Service.

G Settings	
Configuration Configuration Cogon Devices Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader BRP RFID Reader Context COM Port Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic PCSC Reader Nobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader Cogon Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Cogon Providers BRAUMAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon Windows Logon Provider	Mobile Login Web Service Configuration Configuration Host: Test Web Service Current UID: Connect

In the "Host" field, you must enter the IP-Address of the computer, over which the Mobile Login App can reach the computer. The port of the Mobile Login Web Service is fixed and cannot be specified here.

The elements in the section "Test Web Service" can be used to test the Mobile Login Web Service for correct operation. To start the test, click the button "Connect" to start the web service. If you scan the shown QR-Code with the Mobile Login App on a mobile device, the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID".



To get the web service started, it must be selected as the standard login method by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.

log Settings	
Configuration Co	Mobile Login Web Service Configuration Configuration Host: Test Web Service Current UID: Ult Connect

3.2.8.2 Configuration of the Mobile Login QR-Generator ActiveX Control

The Mobile Login QR-Generator ActiveX Control is installed during the installation of PM-LOGON and can be integrated into a WinCC picture in the WinCC Graphics Designer.



If the control is selected, the properties of the control can be displayed and configured by clicking on "Control Properties".



UrlWebService: Here the URL must be entered, over which the control can reach the web service in the runtime.

CurrentUserName: If the logged in user changes, the control should display the login button again. For this purpose, this property must be linked to the internal tag "@Current User" by right-clicking in the column "Dynamic" at "CurrentUserName". For update cycle, "Upon Change" must be selected by right-clicking in the column "Update Cycle", so that the control is notified when the tag changes.

Attribute UrlWebService	Static https://localhost:8091/ 🖓	Dynamic	Update Cycle Indir
CurrentUserName TextFont FontSize BackgroundColor ForegroundColor	Siemens Sans 18 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Dynamic Di C-Action VBS action. Tag Animation. Delete	ialog
 Tags - Project: E:\WinCCProjects\Q ▲ -▲ -▲ ⇒ 禁禁 == Filter: ● ✓ 	RTest\QRTest.mcp		? ×
WinCC Tags	Name Image: Second State	Type Par Tag group Tag group Tag group Tag group Text tag 16-bit Text tag 16-bit Text tag 16-bit Text tag 16-bit	rameter Comment ^
		OK	Cancel Help

			Picture cycle
			Window Cycle
			Upon change
			250 ms
		• • • • • • • • •	500 ms
			1s
			2 s
			5s
			10 s
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 min
			5 min
			10 min
			1h
			User cycle 1
			User cycle 2
			User cycle 3
Static	Dynamic	Update (User cycle 4
https://localhost:8091	/ Q		User cycle 5
	@CurrentUserName	User cycle 2	
Siemens Sans	Ω.	-	
18	Ŏ		
	۱Õ		
	Ŏ		
2	Ą		

Attribute	Static	Dynamic	Update Cycle	Indir
UrlWebService	https://localhost:8091/	Q		
CurrentUserName		💡 @CurrentUserName	Upon change	
TextFont	Siemens Sans	Q		
FontSize	18	Q		
BackgroundColor		Q		
ForegroundColor		Q		

TextFont: Here you can specify a font for the control.

FontSize: Here the font size can be adjusted.

Background/ForegroundColor: Here you can change the foreground and background color of the control.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022

3.2.8.3 Installation of the Mobile Login App

In order to login an user via the Mobile Login Web Service, the user has to have the Mobile Login App installed on his mobile device.

The .apk installation file is stored on the installation media under

".\V2\Android\PM_LOGON.MobileLogin-Signed.apk". The installation file can be moved to the mobile device's storage over an USB-Connection.



Before installing an .apk file manually, installing apps from unknown sources must be allowed.



Afterwards, the app can be installed.

SIEMENS	PM-LOGON Mobile Login	SIEMENS	PM-LOGON Mobile Login
	Installing		App installed.
			DONE OPEN

After installing, the app can be opened. If PM-LOGON shows a QR-Code for authentication, it can be scanned by the Mobile Login App by pressing the button "Scan QR-Code".



Before scanning a QR-Code for the first time, the app must have been granted privileges to take pictures and record video.



3.2.8.4 Assigning a mobile device to a user

In order to be able to log in via Mobile Login, the IMEI of the mobile device must be assigned to the user in the PM-LOGON Configurator. If the Mobile Login web service is selected as the logon device in the Configurator, clicking on "Assign UID" opens a new window with a QR code. If the user scans this QR code with the Mobile Login app on a device, the IMEI of this device is entered as the user's UID.

PM-LOGON Configurator		- 🗆 X
File Help		
Configurator		
💉 🖒 Logon Users only 🛛 Filte	er Find User by UID Assign UID Assign Password	Register mobile device - 1:49 X Credentials Reset Password Edit Extended Properties
User Management		
Usemame Las	ist Name First Name U	
PMLUser1044	PMLUser1044_GivenName	
PMLUser1045	PMLUser1045_GivenName	
PMLUser1046	PMLUser1046_GivenName	
PMLUser1047	PMLUser1047_GivenName	
PMLUser1048	PMLUser1048_GivenName	
PMLUser1049	PMLUser1049_GivenName	12°2°-7-72°618
PMLUser105	PMLUser105_GivenName	
PMLUser1050	PMLUser1050_GivenName	Estate hhere
PMLUser1051	PMLUser1051_GivenName	
PMLUser1052	PMLUser1052_GivenName	Sate the OP Code with the PM LOCON Mobile
PMLUser1053	PMLUser1053_GivenName	Login App on the device you want to register.
PMLUser1054	PMLUser1054_GivenName	
PMLUser1055	PMLUser1055_GivenName	Waiting for UID
PMLUser1056	PMLUser1056_GivenName	
PMLUser1057	PMLUser1057_GivenName	Canal
PMLUser1058	PMLUser1058_GivenName	
PMLUser1059	PMLUser1059_GivenName	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Repository Users: 10010 Logon	Users: 6 of 50	

3.2.9 Configuration of a RF521 reader

The menu item "RF521 Reader" is used to configure a connected RF521 reader.

\overline K Settings		8
Configuration Co	RF521 Reader Configuration Configuration COM Port: COM2 Reverse UID: Image: Comparison of the second seco	
	Clos	e

The RF521 reader is addressed via a virtual COM port; this COM port is only available if the device is connected to the PC. Therefore make sure that the device is connected and select the appropriate port. The virtual COM port generated by the driver of the RF521 reader can be determined via the Windows Device Manager.

Via the setting "Reverse UID" the Unique ID (UID) of the read RFID transponder transmitted by the reader can be reversed byte by byte. This may be necessary if other readers are in use which may transmit the UID in reverse byte order and this cannot be set on the reader itself.

The setting "Poll Cycle in ms" defines the cycle in milliseconds in which the reader is queried.

In the section "Test Reader" the reader can be tested for correct function. To do this, press the "Connect" button to connect to the reader. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the card will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the card into the detection range of the reader.

To use the RF521 reader in PM-LOGON, you must now define it as the standard logon device. To do this, right-click the element "RF521 Reader" under "Logon Devices" in the tree structure and click on the entry "Set as default".

3.2.10 Configuration of a Teratron RFID reader

The element labeled "Teratron RFID Reader" allows the configuration of a connected Teratron RFID reader.

The Teratron PC-Loc driver for Siemens has to be installed first.

\overline Kettings	E Contraction of the second
Configuration Co	Teratron RFID Reader Configuration Bypass connection loss for 3 s Show warning on low transponder battery Test reader Current UID: Connect
	Close

The setting "Bypass connection loss for" determines the time span, for which a connection loss between transponder an reader is bypassed by PM-LOGON.

This can be necessary if other electrical fields interfere with the field of the reader (e.g. mobile phones, power supplies).

The elements in the section "Test Reader" can be used to test the reader for correct operation. In order to start the test click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the reading device. If the device is functioning correctly the unique id of the transponder will be displayed in the field "Current UID" when you bring the transponder into the detection range of the reader.

In order to use the reader it must be selected as the standard device by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.

3.2.11 Configuration of an Euchner EKS USB Reader

The menu item "Euchner EKS USB Reader" is used to configure a connected Euchner EKS reader.

\overline K Settings	٤	3
Configuration Co	Euchner EKS Reader Configuration Configuration COM Port: COM3 Reverse UID: Image: Common Co	
	Close	

The Euchner EKS USB reader is addressed via a virtual COM port; this COM port is only available if the device is connected to the PC. Therefore make sure that the device is connected and select the appropriate port. The virtual COM port generated by the driver of the Euchner EKS reader can be determined via the Windows Device Manager.

Via the setting "Reverse UID" the Unique ID (UID) of the read EKS transponder transmitted by the reader can be reversed byte by byte. This may be necessary if other readers are in use which may transmit the UID in reverse byte order and this cannot be set on the reader itself.

The setting "Poll Cycle in ms" defines the cycle in milliseconds in which the reader is queried.

In the section "Test Reader" the reader can be tested for correct function. To do this, press the "Connect" button to connect to the reader. If you then insert a Euchner Key into the reader, the UID is displayed in the "Current UID" field.

So that the Euchner EKS reader can be used, you must now define it as the standard logon device. To do this, right-click the element "Euchner EKS USB Reader" under "Logon Devices" in the tree structure and click on the entry "Set as default".

3.2.12 Configuration of an active directory

The settings for using active directory (i.e. a domain controller) are configured by using the element "Active Directory" within the section "User Repositories".

Active Directory Configura	ation
Credentials	
Domain:	testdomain.local
Usemame:	Administrator
Password:	*****
	Validate
Limit Repository to Orga	nizational Unit
Organizational Unit:	🗙
Filter visible Logon users	s in Configurator
Group:	~
Properties	
UID property:	homePhone ~
Password property:	pager ~
PIN property:	otherHomePhone \checkmark
Extended property 1:	~
Extended property 2:	\sim
	Validate
Key Management	
Active key:	2db 7b 9645328f26b 6a 8959b 666b 44665
Staged key:	<not set=""> Activate</not>
	Stage new Key Rekey Repository
Backup/Restore Repos	itory
	Backup Repository Restore Backup

The section "Credentials" is used to configure the credentials that are required for the domain:

- Domain: Name of the domain that is to be used as a user repository in PM-LOGON.
- Username / Password:

Name and password of the user that is used by the PM-LOGON Configurator in order to assign RFID cards to domain accounts. The login that is used for this purpose must have the permission to read/write user attributes in the active directory of the domain and to change and to reset passwords.

By clicking the button labeled "Validate" the authentication credentials presented in the corresponding fields are verified against the domain.

In the section "Limit Repository to Organizational Unit" the user repository can be limited to one Organizational Unit (OU). Only users who are in this OU or in an OU below it are considered. This means that several user repositories (e.g. for different locations/companies) can be set up within the same domain.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022
The section **"Filter visible Logon users in Configurator"** can be used to filter the users read from the domain controller for members of a specific user group. This is especially useful for larger domains/OUs where only a dedicated group of users shall be configured for RFID card login.

The section **"Properties"** allows you to define the user attributes in the domain that will be used to store the **UID** of the card and also the encrypted **password** of the user. For this purpose either already existing attributes can be used or alternatively dedicated attributes can be created within the domain controller. The attribute have to be of type "Unicode String". In a redundant domain controller setup, make sure that the attributes that are used are marked as being relevant for replication.

The PIN attribute can be used to store an up to 8-digit PIN for the user. This PIN can then be used together with the Windows Logon Provider or transferred via the OPC And SOAP Access Logon Provider e.g. to an OPC server.

The two attributes **Extended Property 1** and **Extended Property 2** can be used to store additional information about the user in the Active Directory, which can then be written to two linked variables in the Active Directory by PM-LOGON Runtime via the "OPC and SOAP Access" plug-in. The attributes used must also be of the type "DirectoryString".

These two attributes are optional and can be used independently of each other.

Clicking the button labeled "Validate" checks the selected attributes against the domain controller for validity.

Important:

Make sure that the attributes that are to be used from PM-LOGON are empty before being used for the first time. PM-LOGON cannot differentiate between e.g. a phone number and the unique id of a RFID transponder. Therefore every user with a non-empty UID attribute in the domain will be displayed as being a PM-LOGON user.

Furthermore the data that is eventually already present in the user id and password attributes will be encrypted upon startup of the PM-LOGON Configurator and will therefore not be usable for any other purpose afterwards!

In the section "Key Management", you can create a user-defined key for encrypting the stored credentials.

For detailed information, please refer to chap. 7 - Key Management.

In the section "Backup/Restore Repository", you can back up the stored credentials of the user repositories or restore them from a backup.

Detailed information on this can be found in chap. 8 - Backup/Restore of a user repository.

To specify the Active Directory as the user repository to be used it has to be selected as the standard repository.

This can be done by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.



3.2.13 Configuration of the local user management

Instead of using active directory as a repository for user management, the user management of the local computer can be used as an alternative.

🙇 Settings				
Configuration Configuration Cogon Devices Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader BRP RFID Reader Content EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic PCSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Nobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader User Repositories Active Directory Local Computer	Local Computer Configu Key Management Active key: Staged key: Backup/Restore Repo	Itage new Key Stage new Key Stage new Key	99b04407d Rekey Repository Restore Backup	Activate

In the section "Key Management", you can create a user-defined key for encrypting the stored credentials.

For detailed information, please refer to chap. 7 - Key Management.

In the section "Backup/Restore Repository", you can back up the stored credentials of the user repositories or restore them from a backup.

Detailed information on this can be found in chap. 8 - Backup/Restore of a user repository.

To specify the local user management as the user repository to be used it has to be selected as the standard repository.

This can be done by selecting the command "Set as default" from the context menu. The context menu is opened by right clicking on the element.



Please note that in the case when the local user management is used, the PM-LOGON Configurator must be started with administrative rights. This can be done by right clicking the program and selecting "Run as administrator" from the context menu. E.g. under Windows 10: Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022 Page 39 of 122



You can alternatively specify that the application shall always be started with administrative rights. For this purpose navigate to the installation folder (normally "C:\Program Files (x86)\Siemens\PM\PM-LOGON") and edit the properties of the application:

Name	Date modified	Туре	Size			
PM-LOGON.Configurator	19/01/2021 13:38	Application		-finuntes Descention		\sim
PM-LOGON.Configurator.exe.config	19/01/2021 13:30	CONFIG File	M PIVI-LOGON.Co	nfigurator Properties		^
PM-LOGON.Configurator.exe.manifest	19/01/2021 13:30	MANIFEST File	Security	Details	Previous Versions	
PM-LOGON.Configurator	27/01/2021 12:42	Text Document	General	Compatibility	Digital Signatures	
PMLogon.OPCUA.Config	19/01/2021 13:30	XML Document	If this program isn't	working correctly on this yers	sion of Windows.	
PM-LOGON.Runtime.COMAccess.dll	19/01/2021 13:40	Application exte	try running the com	patibility troubleshooter.		
Ø PM-LOGON.Runtime.Service	19/01/2021 13:38	Application	Run compatibilit	y troubleshooter		
PM-LOGON.Runtime.Service.exe.config	19/01/2021 13:30	CONFIG File	How do I choose c	ompatibility settings manually	?	
PM-LOGON.Runtime.Service	27/01/2021 12:42	Text Document	- Compatibility mod	a	_	
PM-LOGON.Runtime.UI	19/01/2021 13:38	Application	Run this progr	am in compatibility mode for:		
PM-LOGON.Runtime.Ul.exe.config	19/01/2021 13:30	CONFIG File	Wt-dawn 0	, ,		
PM-LOGON.Runtime.UI.exe.manifest	19/01/2021 13:30	MANIFEST File	vvindows 8		~	
PM-LOGON.Runtime.Webservice.dll	19/01/2021 13:40	Application exte	Calling			
PM-LOGON.Server.Service	27/01/2021 12:41	Text Document		rmodo		
PsgCcDipLibNET_I3.dll	19/01/2021 13:30	Application exte		mode		
📧 ReaderDemo	19/01/2021 13:30	Application	8-bit (256) color	\sim		
SetupManaged	08/12/2020 22:04	Text Document	Run in 640 x 4	480 screen resolution		
System.Net.Http.Formatting.dll	19/01/2021 13:42	Application exte	Disable fullscr	een optimizations		
System.Net.Http.Formatting	28/11/2018 13:00	XML Document	Run this progr	am as an administrator		
🗟 System.Web.Http.dll	19/01/2021 13:42	Application exte	Change big	h DPI settings		
🗟 System.Web.Http.Owin.dll	19/01/2021 13:42	Application exte	onunge nig	, en aotango		
🖭 System.Web.Http.Owin	28/11/2018 13:01	XML Document	Change and	ngo for all usom		
🖭 System.Web.Http	28/11/2018 13:01	XML Document		rigs for all users		
📧 TeratronBatteryWarning	19/01/2021 13:38	Application				
TeratronBatteryWarning.exe.config	19/01/2021 13:30	CONFIG File		OK	Cancel Apply	



3.2.14 Checking the configuration

Select the summary page of the configuration. On the summary page you should now see the selected reading device and the user repository that is used. The configuration of the PM-LOGON Configurator is now complete.

\overline Settings		×
Configuration Configuration Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader BRP RFID Reader Euchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic POSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Mobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader Teratron RFID Reader Active Directory Local Computer	Summay Packages Logging Allowed UIDs Summay Logon Device: BRP RFID Reader User Repository: Active Directory Total Package Size: 50 Program Data Folder: C_\ProgramData_Stemens\Process Management\PM+LOGON Restrict UIDs Accept only allowed UIDs	
		Close

Click the "Close" button to leave the configuration dialog.

3.2.15 Operation

A PM-LOGON Configurator - X											
File Help											
Configurator											
💉 🖒 Logon Users only	Filter Find User by UID	Assign UID Assign Passwo	rd Unassign UID	Unassign Pass	word Assign	PIN Unassign PIN Char	ge Password Validate Cred	entials Reset Password	Edit Extended	Properti	es
User Management											
Usemame	Last Name	First Name	UID	Password	PIN	Extended Property 1	Extended Property 2	Description			^
PMLUser0		PMLUser0_GivenName	572F63E0								
PMLUser1		PMLUser1_GivenName	8034EBFA894604	•••••							
PMLUser10		PMLUser10_GivenName		•••••							
PMLUser100		PMLUser100_GivenName		•••••							
PMLUser1000		PMLUser1000_GivenName									
PMLUser1001		PMLUser1001_GivenName	57B65DE0	•••••							
PMLUser1002		PMLUser1002_GivenName									
PMLUser1003		PMLUser1003_GivenName									
PMLUser1004		PMLUser1004_GivenName									
PMLUser1005		PMLUser1005_GivenName									
PMLUser1006		PMLUser1006_GivenName									
PMLUser1007		PMLUser1007_GivenName									
PMLUser1008		PMLUser1008_GivenName									
PMLUser1009		PMLUser1009_GivenName									
PMLUser101		PMLUser101_GivenName									
PMLUser1010		PMLUser1010_GivenName									
PMLUser1011		PMLUser1011_GivenName									
Repository Users: 10013 Lo	gon Users: 21 of 2505	1	1			1	1	1			-
	,										

After the configuration has been completed, the list of users from the selected repository is displayed.

Operation:

 Assigning a RFID card to a user: Select the user from the list and click the button labeled "Assign UID". After that, present the card of the user to the connected reading device. When the card has been recognized and the UID has been read it is assigned to the user and stored in the configured user repository.

If the user has already been assigned a card or the presented card has been assigned to another user account a warning message will be displayed. You can decide if the configuration should be updated accordingly.

If there has been no password assigned to the user yet, you can use the button "Assign Password". The password entered here must match the current login password of the selected user account. After the password has been entered it will be validated against the configured user repository. If the credentials cannot be verified a warning message will be displayed.

Entering the password here does not change the existing login password of the selected user account.

• Assign password:

By clicking the "Assign Password" button, the current login password of the selected user account can be entered and then stored within the configured user repository.

• Change Password:

By clicking the "Change Password" button, the current login password of the selected user account can be changed and in parallel be stored in the configured user repository used for PM-LOGON.

• Assign PIN:

By clicking the "Change Password" button, an up to 8-digit numeric PIN can be stored for the user.

If an Active Directory is used as the user repository, the PIN can only be edited if the corresponding attribute has been attached in the configuration of the Active Directory plugin.

• Validate Credentials:

With the button labeled "Validate Credentials" you can check if the credentials that have been stored in the user repository of PM-LOGON match the credentials of the selected user account.

 Remove the assignment of a RFID card from a user: The button "Unassign UID" removes the linkage between the selected user account and a RFID card.

- Remove password assignment: By clicking the button "Unassign Password" the credentials stored in the configured user repository of PM-LOGON are removed. This does **not** change the existing login password of the selected user account.
- Reset password:

By clicking the button "Reset Password" the logon password of the selected user account as well as the credentials stored within the configured user repository of PM-LOGON can be reset.

To reset the password, the credentials of a domain administrator must be provided here.

- Remove PIN: By clicking the Button "Unassign PIN" the stored PIN for the user can be removed.
- Edit Extended Properties:

The "Edit Extended Properties" button can be used to store additional information related to the user. This information can only be edited if an Active Directory is used as the user repository and if corresponding attributes are attached in the configuration of the Active Directory plug-in.

Finding user accounts:

- By using the button "Find User by UID" the corresponding user account that has been assigned to a specific card at hand can be determined. Click the button and present the card to the reading device. Once the reader has detected the card and the unique id has been read, the corresponding logon that is associated with that card will be selected. If the card is not associated to any account, a warning message will be displayed.
- Displaying only PM-LOGON relevant users: With the button "Logon Users only" the displayed list of user accounts is filtered to show only users that have already been assigned to a RFID card.
- Filtering: By using the "Filter" button output to the list can be restricted to show only accounts matching additional criterions.

Please note:

When using the repository "Local Computer" administrative privileges are required to perform the following actions:

- Assign UID
- Unassign UID
- Assign Password
- Unassign Password
- Change Password
- Reset Password
- Rekeying
- Backup/Restore user repository

PM-LOGON Configurator has to be started from a user with administrative rights.

Multiple selections:

Some operations can be performed for multiple users at once. E.g. it is possible to unassign the unique id or the password in the user repository for multiple users in one step.

M-LOGON Configurate	or								-		×
File Help											
Configurator											
💉 💍 Logon Users only	Filter Find User by	UID Assign UID Assign Passwo	rd Unassign UID	Unassign Pas	sword Assig	n PIN Unassign PIN Ch	ange Password Validate Cr	edentials Reset Password	Edit Extended	Properti	es
User Management											
Usemame	Last Name	First Name	UID	Password	PIN	Extended Property 1	Extended Property 2	Description			^
PMLUser0		PMLUser0_GivenName	572F63E0								
PMLUser1		PMLUser1_GivenName	8034EBFA894604	•••••							
PMLUser10		PMLUser10_GivenName		•••••							
PMLUser100		PMLUser100_GivenName		•••••							
PMLUser1000		PMLUser1000_GivenName									
PMLUser1001		PMLUser1001_GivenName	57B65DE0	•••••							
PMLUser1002		PMLUser1002_GivenName									
PMLUser1003		PMLUser1003_GivenName									
PMLUser1004		PMLUser1004_GivenName									
PMLUser1005		PMLUser1005_GivenName									
PMLUser1006		PMLUser1006_GivenName									
PMLUser1007		PMLUser1007_GivenName									
PMLUser1008		PMLUser1008_GivenName									
PMLUser1009		PMLUser1009_GivenName									
PMLUser101		PMLUser101_GivenName									
PMLUser1010		PMLUser1010_GivenName									
PMLUser1011		PMLUser1011_GivenName									
Repositon / Users: 10013 Ja	gon Users: 21 of 2505										
Repository Users: 10013 Lo	ogon Users: 21 of 2505										

3.2.16 PM-LOGON Configurator self administration mode

By using the link "PM-LOGON Self Administration" the PM-LOGON Configurator is started in a dedicated mode. This is realized by starting the "PM-LOGON.Configurator.exe" with the command line switch /self.

PM-LOGON Self A	dministration		
User Usemame:			Continue
- 1. Read UID			
 2. Assign password Password: Repeat password: 			
 Please enter your 	Jsemame.	Ok	Cancel

In order to use the self-administration mode the "PM-LOGON Configuration" has to be fully installed and configured (Logon Device, User Repository and User Packages).

As of PM-LOGON V2.0, a separate license is no longer required for the self-administration mode. If no license for PM-LOGON Configurator has been installed (because only the self-administration mode is to be used, if applicable), PM-LOGON Configurator can be started in **configuration mode** via the command line parameter **"/config"**.

In this mode, a user from the currently configured user repository can assign a RFID card that has not yet been used for another account, to its own login.

This also allows setting the current login password of the user account to match the one stored in the PM-LOGON user repository. This assignment is only possible if the password that is entered matches the current login password of the account.

If no action is performed within the dialog for 30 seconds, the application exits automatically without performing any changes.

The user name has to be entered without a domain prefix.

Please note that in the case when the local user management is used, the PM-LOGON Configurator has to be started with administrative rights. This can be done by right clicking the program and selecting "Run as administrator" from the context menu.

You can alternatively specify that the application shall always be started with administrative rights. For this purpose navigate to the installation folder (normally "C:\Program Files (x86)\Siemens\PM\PM-LOGON") and edit the properties of the application:

Settings Reduced color mode						
8-bit (256) color \sim						
Run in 640 x 480 screen resolution						
Disable display scaling on high DPI settings						
Run this program as an administrator						

If the self administration mode shall be started for a specific login (e.g. the user currently logged in) the name of the requested user can be appended to the command line switch /self (without domain prefix). In this case the user name in the dialog is already filled out and not editable. Here is an example of the complete command line:

"C:\Program Files (x86)\Siemens\PM\PMLOGON\PM-LOGON.Configurator.exe" /self User1

Application example:

PM-LOGON Configuratoris started in self administration mode for the currently logged in user from a process screen in WinCC runtime. This can be done by e.g. a button that executes the following script in the OnClick event:

```
Sub OnClick(Byval Item)
```

Dim currentUser currentUser = HMIRuntime.Tags.Item("@CurrentUser").Read(1) Dim objShell set objShell = CreateObject("shell.application") objShell.ShellExecute """C:\Program Files (x86)\Siemens\PM\PMLOGON\PM-LOGON.Configurator.exe""", "/self " + currentUser, "", "open", 1 setobjShell = nothing

End Sub

Additional command line parameters for self-administration mode:

• /changepassword

Using the "Change Password" mode, the user can change his Windows login password and store it in the PM-LOGON user repository at the same time. For this, the user must already be assigned a UID in order to be able to identify him uniquely.

If the mode is to be started for a specific user, his user name can optionally be specified via the username parameter (without domain prefix).

Here the user name can no longer be changed in the dialog.

• /changepin:

Via the "Change PIN" mode, the user can change his PIN stored in PM-LOGON. For this purpose, the user must already be assigned a UID in order to be able to identify him uniquely.

If the mode is to be started for a specific user, his user name can optionally be specified via the username parameter (without domain prefix).

Here the user name can no longer be changed in the dialog.

3.2.17 Diagnostics

Logging of trace information into log files for diagnostic purposes can be configured on the page "Logging" within the configuration section ("Enable Logging").

The level of information written to the logs can be defined by selecting one of the options from the drop down list "Log Level":

- All:
 - All messages
- Error: Only errors
- Warning: Warnings and errors
- Information: Information messages, warnings and errors
 Verbose:
 - Detail information, Information messages, warnings and errors

File logging should only be activated for diagnosing problems and should not be activated permanently. The size of the log files is limited to 10MB and the log files are automatically deleted after 7 days. The folder where the log files are stored can be opened by clicking the link to the right of the label "Logfile Folder".

属 Settings				\times
Configuration	Summary	Packages	s Logging Allowed UIDs	
E Logon Devices	Logfiles	-		
 Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader 	Enable	Logging:		
BRP RFID Reader	lagla	unl:		
 Euchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader 	LOG LEV	ei.	NI	
Generic PCSC Reader	Logfile I	Folder:	C:\ProgramData\Siemens\Process Management\PM-LOGON\Configurator\Diagnosis	
 Interflex LP71 USB Reader Mobile Login Web Service 				
RF521 Reader				
Teratron RFID Reader Iver Repositories				
Active Directory				
Local Computer				
			Close	

PM-LOGON Runtime 4

4.1 Introduction

PM-LOGON Runtime reads the RFID card entering the detection range of the reading device determines the associated user login by querying the associated user account from the configured user repository and finally performs the login operation with the stored credentials.

Additionally, the PM-LOGON Runtime provides a web service, which can be used as a "User Repository" (Remote PM-LOGON Runtime) for a remote PM-LOGON Runtime. This is required in the case when the PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels is used to relay the information sent from the comfort panels.

M-LOGON Runtime			>	×
File Help				
Server				
🕨 💷 者 🖭				
Communication				_
Timestamp	Туре	Source	Message	^
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771	0	PM-LOGON Runtime	Remote Repository configuration loaded.	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771	0	PM-LOGON Runtime	Loading Application configuration from file <c:\programdata\siemens\process management\i<="" td=""><td></td></c:\programdata\siemens\process>	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771	0	PM-LOGON Runtime	Application configuration loaded.	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771	0	PM-LOGON Runtime	Loading BRAUMAT Logon provider configuration from file <c:\programdata\siemens\process< td=""><td></td></c:\programdata\siemens\process<>	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771		PM-LOGON Runtime	$\label{eq:loading} Loading \ OpcAndSoapAccess \ provider \ configuration \ from \ file \ <\!C:\ ProgramData\Siemens\Process \ Process \ Simple \ S$	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771		PM-LOGON Runtime	OpcAndSoapAccess provider configuration loaded.	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.771	0	PM-LOGON Runtime	Loading SIMATIC Logon provider configuration from file <c:\programdata <math="" \process="" \siemens="" display="inline">{\tt N}</c:\programdata>	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.787		PM-LOGON Runtime	${\tt Loading WinCCV} iewerRT \ {\tt provider \ configuration \ from \ file \ <\!C:\ \ Program \ Data\ \ Siemens\ \ \ \ \ Process$	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.787		PM-LOGON Runtime	Loading Application configuration from file <c:\programdata\siemens\process management\i<="" td=""><td></td></c:\programdata\siemens\process>	
15/01/2021 14:58:59.787		PM-LOGON Runtime	Application configuration loaded.	
15/01/2021 14:59:01.302		PM-LOGON Runtime	Saving Application configuration to file <c:\programdata\siemens\process <math="" display="inline" management\pm-="">\</c:\programdata\siemens\process>	
15/01/2021 14:59:01.302	0	PM-LOGON Runtime	Application configuration saved.	
15/01/2021 14:59:01.334		PM-LOGON Runtime Service	Got Reload request	¥
<			>	

4.2 Application window

The main window displays information about current activities performed by the PM-LOGON Runtime. By using the buttons on the toolbar, the runtime can be activated ("Start"), deactivated ("Stop") and the list of activities can be cleared ("Clear Log"). The AutoScroll-function can be activated/deactivated via the "AutoScroll" button.

When starting the runtime for the first time, a warning message will be displayed that no default card reader has been configured yet. In this case open the configuration dialog to provide the settings for the operation of the PM-LOGON Runtime.



4.3 Configuration

Open the configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime with the menu command File->Configuration. The configuration dialog of the PM-LOGON Runtime will be displayed.

Settings		×
Configuration	Summary Webservice Certificates Logging Summary	
 Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader 	Logon device: Generic COM Port Reader	
 BRP RFID Reader Euchner EKS USB Reader 	User repository: Active Directory	
 Generic COM Port Reader Generic PCSC Reader 	Logon providers: UPC and SUAP Access	
 Interflex LP71 USB Reader Mobile Login Web Service 	Program data folder: <u>C:\ProgramData\Siemens\Process Management\PM-LOGON</u>	
 RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader 	Startup	
User Repositories Active Directory	Start minimized	
Local Computer Benote RM-LOGON Runtime	Run as service	
Renote TW-COON Handline Logon Providers BRAUMAT/SISTAR	Security Require password to access configuration	
 OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon 	Password: Set	
WinCCViewerRT	Hide UIDs in log	
	Reject login of disabled user accounts	
	Log off Delay	۲
	Delay log off for 1 ≑ seconds	
	C	

The tree view on the left side allows you to navigate over the different configuration sections.

The element labeled "Configuration" opens the general configuration settings of PM-LOGON Runtime.

The section "Summary" in the tab "Summary" displays the logon device, the user repository and the logon provider that is currently being used by PM-LOGON Runtime.

The link allows you to navigate to the path in the file system where the configuration data is stored.

The section "Startup" defines if PM-LOGON Runtime shall automatically connect to the reading device, the user repository and the login provider upon application start ("Connect on application start"). The setting "Start minimized" defines if PM-LOGON Runtime is started minimized and displayed only on the system tray. The main window of PM-LOGON Runtime is restored by double clicking the tray icon.



The checkbox "Run as a service" can be used to specify whether you want to run PM-LOGON Runtime as an operating system service or interactively.

The configuration of PM-LOGON Runtime can be protected against unauthorized access. If the checkbox "Require password to access configuration" is activated, a password can be specified that is required to access the configuration. The password can be changed by using the button "Set".

Since UIDs read from the RFID cards may be information that should be protected against unauthorized access the UIDs can be hidden from the diagnostic logs by activating the option "Hide UIDs in log".

If the checkbox "Reject disabled users" is activated, PM-LOGON will reject the login for user accounts which are disabled in the user repository (e.g., Active Directory).

The "Delay log off for x seconds" setting in the "Log off Delay" section can be used to delay the logoff for up to 15 seconds after removing the card from the reader field. Prerequisite for this is that the option "Log off current user" has been selected as "Log off behavior" in the respective logon provider and the reader used signals the removal of the card from the field to PM-LOGON. If the card leaves the reader field and returns within the set time period, the logoff process is aborted and the previously logged in user remains logged in. If another card is brought into the field within the set period after leaving the reader field of a card, the log off process is also aborted and the user assigned to this card is logged in.

The "Webservice" tab allows the configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime web service, which is especially required if the PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels is used to provide login information on panels.

The "Certificates" tab allows you to manage the security certificates which PM-LOGON uses for secure data exchange with OPC UA servers and other PM-LOGON Runtime instances.

Logging of trace information into log files for diagnostic purposes can be configured on the page "Logging" within the configuration section.

The element "Logon Devices" navigates to an overview of all currently supported login devices. Underneath this element the configuration sections for the individual login devices are located.

The element "User Repositories" navigates to the configuration section for the supported user management systems. Underneath this element the configuration sections for the individual user management repositories are located.

The "Logon Providers" element takes you to the overview of the supported logon services; below this are the configuration sections of the listed logon services.

PM-LOGON has a plug-in concept that allows the system to be expanded in order to support additional reading devices and user repositories.

4.3.1 Configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime Web Service

The PM-LOGON Runtime Web Service is required if the respective PM-LOGON Runtime instance is operated together with other remote PM-LOGON Runtime or PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels instances.

Settings					
le Configuration	Summary	Webservice	Certificates	Logging	
 Logon Devices Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader BRP RFID Reader Euchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader Generic PCSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Mobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader User Repositories 	- Webserv Enable Port: HTTPS V Enable Port:	rice Webservice: Webservice Webservice:	8090 9090	 ★ ★ ★ ★ ★ ★ ★ 	
 Active Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Logon Providers BRAUMAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon UMC Logon Windows Logon Provider 					

PM-LOGON Runtime provides both a HTTP and a HTTPS web service.

PM-LOGON for Panels instances always use the HTTP web service, only HTTPS web service is allowed for connection between PM-LOGON runtime and server instances.

To establish an HTTPS connection, a port must be reserved to associate it with the PM-LOGON application certificate. The default port is already reserved by the installation of PM-LOGON Runtime, so that the port only needs to be reserved via the "Register Port" button when a change is made.

Activate the respective web service via the corresponding checkbox.

4.3.2 User specific configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime

The configuration of the PM-LOGON Runtime is user independent by default and therefore valid for all users on the system. It is stored in the folder

"%ProgramData%\Siemens\Process Management\PM-LOGON\Runtime".

By using a command line parameter on the "PM-LOGON.Runtime.exe" the configuration can also be stored user specific.

To store the configuration user specific call the PM-LOGON.Runtime.exe with the parameter "/userconf".

The configuration files of PM-LOGON Runtime will then be stored in the local user profile of the current Windows user.

4.3.3 Configuration of the SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R RFID card reader See section 3.2.3.

4.3.4 Configuration of the Admitto USB reader

See section 3.2.4.

4.3.5 Configuration of the Admitto-C TCP/IP reader See section 3.2.5.

See Section 5.2.5.

4.3.6 Configuration of a generic COM port reader

See section 3.2.6.

4.3.7 Configuration of a generic PCSC card reader

See section 3.2.7.

4.3.8 Configuration of the Mobile Login Web Service

See section Fehler! Verweisquelle konnte nicht gefunden werden..

4.3.9 Configuration of a RF521 RFID reader

See section 3.2.9.

4.3.10 Configuration of a Teratron RFID reader

See section 3.2.10.

4.3.11 Configuration of an Euchner EKS USB Reader

See section 3.2.11.

4.3.12 Configuration of an Active Directory

See section 3.2.12.

Optimization of query performance in large Active Directory structures:

Large Active Directory structures with many users can lead to slower performance when determining the domain user assigned to a UID.

In order to optimize the query, the search within the Active Directory can be restricted to one Organizational Unit. The PM-LOGON Runtime then restricts the search for the user belonging to a UID to the specified Organizational Unit and the Organizational Units below it.

To do this, select the corresponding Organizational Unit in the "Root OU for UID Search in Runtime" section of the Active Directory Repository configuration.

Active Directory Configurat	tion
Credentials	
Domain:	testdomain.local
Usemame:	Administrator
Password:	
	Validate
- Root OU for UID Search	in Runtime
Organizational Unit:	
Properties	
UID property:	homePhone ~
Password property:	pager ~
PIN property:	otherHomePhone \lor
Extended property 1:	~
Extended property 2:	~
	Validate
Key Management	
Active key:	2db7b9645328f26b6a8959b666b44665
Staged key:	<not set=""> Activate</not>
	Stage new Key

4.3.13 Configuration of the local user management

See section 3.2.13.

4.3.14 Configuration of a remote PM-LOGON runtime

If a local user management is used, access from a remote computer is not directly possible. In this case however, the user repository "Remote PM-LOGON Runtime" can be used.

The working principle is as follows:



If a RFID card is detected at PM-LOGON Runtime (A) a remote PM-LOGON Runtime (B) is being queried by utilizing the integrated web service in order to retrieve the user information from the local user management. This information is then relayed back to the querying PM-LOGON Runtime (A) and is then used on this computer for the corresponding logon provider (e.g. SIMATIC Logon). The transfer of the password is done in an encrypted format.

In the configuration of the "User Repository" to use at PM-LOGON Runtime (A) the web service that should be contacted has to be addressed by entering the URI of the service in the form "https://<IP/Name>:<Port>". The default port number is 8090.

The HTTPS web service on PM-LOGON Runtime (B) must activated. As of PM-LOGON V2.0, the Remote Repository Plugin communicates exclusively with the HTTPS web service of the remote PM-LOGON Runtime. The HTTP web service is no longer supported for communication between two PM-LOGON Runtime instances.

6 Settings	:
Image: Settings Image: Setting	Summary Webservice Certificates Logging Webservice Enable Webservice Enable Webservice Enable Webservice Port: 9090 🐑 Register Port
 Hemote PM-LOGUN Runtime Logon Providers BRAUMAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon WinCCViewerRT 	Close
	Close

The HTTPS connection is secured via security certificates. For this, the PM-LOGON Runtime (A) and (B) must exchange their security certificates.

For this, first make sure that the HTTPS web service of the PM-LOGON Runtime (B) is activated and the specified port has been registered.

Then configure the URI of the HTTPS web service of Runtime (B) at PM-LOGON Runtime (A). Make sure that you have correctly specified the protocol https:// in the URI.

G Settings		×
Configuration C	Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Configuration Connection URI: https://192.168.1.101:9095 Check Second URI: Check Image: PM-LOGON Server Client ID: PM-LOGON RT on PRODDEV2020	

If the remote PM-LOGON runtime is a PM-LOGON server, you must check the "Remote is PM-LOGON Server" checkbox. Assign a unique name for the client.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022



Then, press the "Check" button.

You will now be asked if you want to accept the security certificate of the web service of PM-LOGON Runtime (B).

Remote PM-LOGON	Runtime Configuration
Connection	
URI:	https://192.168.1.101:9095 Check
Second URI:	Check
Remote is PM-I	LOGON Server
Client ID:	PM-LOGON RT on PRODDEV2020
	Do you like to accept the following certificate? Thumbprint: 01D64A5B09EE9959A860C7544787BE8D49EAEC07 Subject: DC=DESKTOP-DKNBBAT, CN=PM-LOGON_Server Issued by: DC=DESKTOP-DKNBBAT, CN=PM-LOGON_Server

After you have checked the information and accepted the certificate, it will be displayed in the list of accepted certificates in the "Certificates" tab of PM-LOGON Runtime.

log Settings	×
Configuration Cogon Devices Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader BRP RFID Reader Luchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader	Summary Webservice Certificates Application Certificate Subject: DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGON Runtime Thumbprint: 53EF282BDC245C00F217D97C8D76A27BCF1F9BF8
 Generic PCSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Mobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader Teratron RFID Reader Motive Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime ⇒ Logon Providers BRAUMAT/SISTAR OPC and SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon 	Thumbprint Subject Issued By Valid Until Accept Delete
 UMC Logon Windows Logon Provider 	Thumbprint Subject Issued By F7428B15C7FD6B28CAB34AC1779C8DD44F2379C6 DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime <

Now also make sure that the certificate of PM-LOGON Runtime (B) is accepted in the certificate management of PM-LOGON Runtime (A).

G Settings	×
Configuration Cognition C	Summary Webservice Certificates Application Certificate Subject: DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime Thumbprint: F7428B15C7FD6B28CAB34AC1779C8DD44F2379C6 Rejected F7428B15C7FD6B28CAB34AC1779C8DD44F2379C6
	Subject Issued By 53EF282BDC245C00F217D97C8D76A27BCF1F9BF8 DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime DC=PRODDEV2020, C <
WinCCViewerRT	Accepted Thumbprint Subject Issued By F7428B15C7FD6B28CAB34AC1779C8DD44F2379C6 DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime <

To do this, select the corresponding certificate in the "Rejected" list and press the "Accept" button. The certificate will be displayed in the "Accepted" list.

Settings		×
Configuration Cogon Devices Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader BRP RFID Reader Cuchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Pot Reader Generic PCSC Reader Interflex LP71 USB Reader Nobile Login Web Service RF521 Reader Teratron RFID Reader User Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Remote SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon	Summary Webservice Certificates Application Certificate Subject: DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime Thumbprint: F7428B15C7FD6B28CAB34AC1779C8DD44F2379C6 Rejected Thumbprint Subject Issued By Valid Until Accept Delete	
 Sincric Logur WinCCViewerRT 	Accepted Thumbprint Subject Issued By F7428B15C7FD6B28CAB34AC1779C8DD44F2379C6 DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime DC=DC1, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime 53EF282BDC245C00F217D97C8D76A27BCF1F9BF8 DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime DC=PRODDEV202 <	_0(20, (>

For redundant operation a second PM-LOGON Runtime (B) can be configured by entering a "Second URI" which will be simultaneously queried for logon credentials.



PM-LOGON Runtime (A) sends the request in parallel to both remote PM-LOGON Runtime (B) instances and uses the response that is coming back first. The second response is discarded.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022

In this scenario if the local user management on both PM-LOGON Runtime (B) instances is used, those user repositories have to be kept in sync manually.

In order to utilize a remote PM-LOGON Runtime as the standard user repository it has to be activated with the "Set as default" command from the context menu.



4.3.15 Configuration of the SIMATIC Logon provider

The element "SIMATIC Logon" in the category "Logon Providers" is used to configure SIMATIC Logon as the service that performs the login operation.

This Plugin can only be used and configured when running PM-LOGON Runtime in Interactive Mode and not running as a service.

6 Settings			83
 Configuration □ Logon Devices Admitto USB Reader □ BRP RFID Reader □ Euchner EKS USB Reader □ Generic COM Port Reader □ Generic PCSC Reader □ RF521 Reader □ Teratron RFID Reader □ User Repositories □ Active Directory □ Local Computer □ Remote PM-LOGON Runtime □ SiMATIC Logon □ WinCCViewerRT 	SIMATIC Logon Configuration Configuration Authentication credentials: Logon Domain/Computer: Log off Behaviour Action, when card leaves reader:	Provide usemame and password Log off current user This behaviour requires the reader to notify PM-LOGON when a card leaves the field.	
			Close

If a RFID card is detected, the login credentials (i.e. username and password) of the user that has been assigned to the detected card UID are queried from the configured "User Repository". If the user has been registered with the appropriate password, the login information is handed over to SIMATIC Logon.

The way the login operation is to be executed can be specified by selecting one of the options under "Authentication credentials":

- None The login dialog will be displayed.
- Provide username The login dialog will be displayed and the user name has been prefilled from the information associated with the detected RFID card. The user still has to enter the password.
- Provide username and password The login dialog is not displayed and a silent login is performed directly in SIMATIC Logon.

Additionally in the field "Logon Domain/Computer" the computer name or the domain name must be entered that SIMATIC Logon is authenticating the user against. If the field is left empty, the local computer will be assumed.

In the case that the RFID card leaves the reader an action can be defined how PM-LOGON should react in this case. The following alternatives are currently available:

- Do nothing A user that has been logged in remains logged in.
- Log off current user The current user is logged off.

Please note that not all card reading devices provide a notification when a RFID card has left the reader detection range.

In order to use SIMATIC Logon as the logon provider service it has to be activated by selecting it as the standard "Logon Provider". This is done by using the "Set as default" command from the context menu.



4.3.16 Configuration of the WinCCViewerRT provider

If an automated login should be performed for the SIMATIC WinCC Web Navigator Client by using the "WinCCViewerRT.exe" application, the "Logon Provider" "WinCCViewerRT" needs to be selected in PM-LOGON Runtime.

This Plugin can only be used and configured when running PM-LOGON Runtime in Interactive Mode and not running as a service.

Settings			×
Configuration Configuration Configuration Configuration Canado USB Reader Canado POR PRID Reader Canado POS Reader Canado Posides CARC SOAP Access SIMATIC Logon Vinfoc ViewerRT	WinCCViewer RT Configuration General Authentication credentials: Logon Hotkey: Max wait time: Domain: Viewer Configuration Files Provide Configuration Files Cocation: Default Configuration Files (Logo Location: Default Configuration: Log off Behaviour Action, when card leaves reader: Default Usemame: Default Passwword:	Provide username and password None 20 image: seconds on Hotkey won't be used if checked)	None
			Close

If a RFID card is detected, the login credentials (i.e. username and password) of the user that has been assigned to the detected card UID are queried from the configured "User Repository". If the user has been registered with the appropriate password, the application "WinCCViewerRT.exe" is started.

After the application has started, the login dialog will be displayed. The further course of action depends on the setting that has been configured for the option "Authentication credentials":

• None

The login dialog is displayed. If a user has already been logged in, an implicit log off is performed. Username and password have to be entered manually

• Provide username

The login dialog will be displayed and the user name has been prefilled from the information associated with the detected RFID card. The user still has to enter the password.

 Provide username and password The login dialog will be displayed and the user name has been prefilled from the information associated with the detected RFID card. The password will also automatically be filled in and the dialog will be closed as if the user would have entered the credentials manually and confirmed by clicking OK.

By defining a "Logon Hotkey" an eventually already running instance of "WinCCViewerRT.exe" can be instructed to show its login dialog. This hotkey must then match the hotkey that has been defined within the "WinCCViewerRT" configuration e.g.:

Canguage Setting at	Runtime	•
Default Language at	Runtime	
<project setting=""></project>		-
Disable Keys		
🔲 Task change (Alt+TAB, Ctrl+Esc, ALt+Esc)	
Hotkeys		_
Property sheet	STRG + ALT + P	
Logoff / Logon	None	

The hotkey is defined in the same way a hotkey can be defined in "WinCCViewerRT.exe": Position the input focus in the hotkey field and press the key combination you want to use as the hotkey. If the hotkey definition is to be removed, you can use the button labeled "None" to the right of the field.

The setting "Max wait time" defines the maximum delay that PM-LOGON waits for the automated operation of "WinCCViewerRT.exe" to respond to commands. E.g. if this delay (defined in seconds) has been elapsed after the command to display the login dialog has been sent and no response was detected from the "WinCCViewerRT.exe", the logon attempt is canceled and an error message is written to the diagnostics log.

If a remote SIMATIC Logon computer is used for the authentication of the WebNavigator users, the user name has to be prefixed with the corresponding domain e.g. "MyDomain\User". The domain name to be used can be specified in PM-LOGON in the field labeled "Domain"; e.g. in the example above this would be "MyDomain".

If users shall be using different configurations, the settings under "Viewer Configuration Files" can be used. In this case the option "Provide Configuration Files" needs to be activated and under "Location" a directory on the file system needs to be specified where configuration files for the WinCCViewerRT application are stored. At runtime the PM-LOGON Runtime searches in this directory for a file with the name "<username>.xml". If such a file is present, it is handed over to "WinCCViewerRT.exe" upon start as a command line switch. If no personalized file is found, the optional configuration file specified under "Default Configuration" is used. If that file is also not found the "WinCCViewerRT.exe" is started without any command line switch.

Please note that when personalized configuration files are used, the usage of hotkeys for switching between different logins is not possible. The reason is that the configuration file is provided to "WinCCViewerRT.exe" only once upon startup on the command line.

WinCCViewerRT stores its standard configuration in the user specific file system folder. On a Windows 7 system e.g. under:

C:\Users\<Windows-user>\AppData\LocalLow\Siemens\SIMATIC.WinCC\WebNavigator\Client\WinCCViewerRT.xml

If this file is not present, the configuration dialog of "WinCCViewerRT.exe" is displayed upon startup and the settings made in the dialog are stored in a newly created file. If personalized configuration files are to be used, you can utilize this behavior by renaming an eventually existing "WinCCViewerRT.xml" and starting "WinCCViewerRT.exe". As mentioned before the configuration dialog will be shown and the settings made will be saved in a newly created file. This new file can then be moved into the folder configured under "Location" and renamed to match the name of the user for which it should be used.

Personalized configuration files may also already hold login credentials. In this case no login dialog will be displayed upon startup of "WinCCViewerRT.exe". If you want to make use of this functionality you should set the option under "Authentication credentials" to "None", because otherwise PM-LOGON would wait for the login dialog to be displayed.

In the case that the RFID card leaves the reader an action can be defined how PM-LOGON should react in this case. The following alternatives are currently available:

• Do nothing

A user that has been logged in remains logged in.

• Log on default user

A default user will be logged in who's login credentials needs to be supplied afterwards. If personalized configuration files are used, a configuration file that matches this user is being used. In this case no login information should be supplied in the default configuration file, since it is always expected for the default user that a login dialog is displayed.

Please note that not all card reading devices provide a notification when a RFID card has left the reader detection range.

In order to use WinCCViewerRT as the logon provider service it has to be activated by selecting it as the standard "Logon Provider". This is done by using the "Set as default" command from the context menu.



4.3.17 Configuration of the OPC and SOAP access provider

For the Runtime Advanced (PC) "OPC and SOAP access" can be used as the login provider.

Cana SOAL Access	coningulation						
og off Behaviour							
ction, when card leav	es reader:	Log off current user	~				
MI Runtime							
Set password in pa	ssword prom	npt of User view		Require valid of	credentials		
Set credentials in o	pen login wi	indow					
Replace password	with			Groups separator:	:		
Access HMI Runtime v	via:	OPC UA Server	~				
Primary OPC UA Serv	er Second	dary OPC UA Server					
	Uri:	opc.tcp://127.0.0.1:487	0				
OFC UA Connection							
Usemame:							
Usemame: Password:							
Usemame: Password:							
Usemame: Password:		Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect				
Usemame: Password: Fags:		Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect				
Usemame: Password: Tags: Name	Tag	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID			Logo	off Valu
Usemame: Password: Fags: Name Usemame	Tag PMLUsema	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen	name		Logo	off Valu name
Usemame: Password: ^T ags: Name Usemame Password	Tag PMLUsema PMLPasswi	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPass	name		Logo Cuser Cuser Cuser	off Valu name
Usemame: Password: Fags: Name Usemame Password PIN	Tag PMLUsema PMLPasswi PMLPIN	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPass ns=2;s=PMLPIN	name		Logo -User -Pass -PIN	off Valu name sword
Usemame: Password: Fags: Name Usemame Password PIN UID	Tag PMLUsema PMLPassw PMLPIN PMLUID	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPIN ns=2;s=PMLPIN ns=2;s=PMLUID	name word		Logo -User -Pass PIN UID	off Valu name sword
Usemame: Password: Tags: Name Usemame Password PIN UID User Groups	Tag PMLUsema PMLPasswi PMLPIN PMLUID PMLUID	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPass ns=2;s=PMLPIN ns=2;s=PMLUID ns=2;s=PMLUID ns=2;s=PMLGrou	name word		Logo -User -Pass PIN UID UID USer	off Valu name sword Groups
Usemame: Password: Fags: Name Usemame Password PIN UID User Groups Extended Property 1	Tag PMLUsema PMLPassw PMLPIN PMLUID PMLGroups PMLExtPro	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPass ns=2;s=PMLPIN ns=2;s=PMLUID ns=2;s=PMLGrou ns=2;s=PMLErvtPi	name word ps rop 1		Logo -User Pass -PIN -UID User -User -ExtP	off Valu name word Groups
Usemame: Password: Tags: Name Usemame Password PIN UID User Groups Extended Property 1 Extended Property 2	Tag PMLUsema PMLPasswi PMLPIN PMLUID PMLGroups PMLExtProj PMLExtProj	Accept Certficate	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPAss ns=2;s=PMLVID ns=2;s=PMLUID ns=2;s=PMLExtPi ns=2;s=PMLExtPi ns=2;s=PMLExtPi	name word ps rop 1 rop 2		Logo -User Pass PIN UID UID USer ExtP ExtP	off Valu name word Groups rop 1 rop 2
Usemame: Password: Password: Name Usemame Password PIN UID User Groups Extended Property 1 Extended Property 2 PM-LOGON Status	Tag PMLUsema PMLPasswo PMLPIN PMLUID PMLGroups PMLExtProp PMLExtProp PMLExtProp	Accept Certficate Accept Certficate ame ord s p1 p2 eStatus	Connect Disconnect Node ID ns=2;s=PMLUsen ns=2;s=PMLPass ns=2;s=PMLPIN ns=2;s=PMLUID ns=2;s=PMLGrou ns=2;s=PMLExtPi ns=2;s=PMLExtPi ns=2;s=PMLExtPi	name word ps rop 1 rop 2 ce Status		Logo -User -Pass -PIN -UID User -User -User ExtP X	off Valu name wword Groups rop 1 rop 2

For this configuration two tags of type string are required that will be used to hold the username and password for the user that is to be logged in. These tags need to be created upfront and can then be referenced from PM-LOGON Runtime (Tags **Username** and **Password**).

If a card is detected by the RFID reader the login credentials of the user are determined and transferred into the configured tags. A script within the HMI Runtime is triggered upon this tag change event and performs the login operation with the given username and password.

The **PIN** stored for the user can be transferred to the HMI via the PIN variable.

If a variable is attached to the **UID** property, the UID of the user token is transferred.

The user groups of which the user is a member can be transferred to the HMI via the variable **User Groups**.

Only user groups in which the user is a direct member are transferred. Memberships of groups in groups cannot be resolved.

The list of user groups is concatenated to a string with the separator defined in Groups Separator. It must therefore be ensured that the linked variable has a sufficient length.

The ID of the reader, that registered the UID, can be transferred by connecting the **Device Id** variable. If the reader is connected to the local PM-LOGON Runtime, the value "local" is written to the connected variable. If the local PM-LOGON Runtime is notified by PM-LOGON Server, the name of the corresponding reader is transmitted by PM-LOGON Server.

If attributes for the additional information **Extended Property 1** and **Extended Property 2** have been bound in the Active Directory Plugin, these can be written to two further string variables during logon, which are referenced via the fields "Write Extended Property 1 to Tag" and "Write Extended Property 2 to Tag".

The PM-LOGON Runtime can transmit status information to the HMI Runtime via the connection of a tag to the variable **PM-LOGON Status**.

Two status bits are transmitted cyclically every 30 seconds for this purpose:

• Bit 0:

While the PM-LOGON Runtime is running, this bit is written with the value 1 in the cycle of 30 seconds.

• Bit 1:

If there is a connection between the reader and the PM-LOGON Runtime, this bit is written with the value 1 in the cycle of 30 seconds; if there is no connection, the bit is written with the value 0.

If the status of the connection to the reader changes, the bit is updated accordingly after a maximum of 5 seconds.

If the **Require validated credentials** option has been activated, bit 3 of the status variable can be used to notify the HMI if the validation of the credentials has failed.

PM-LOGON Runtime then sets the value 1 to bit 3. The bit must be reset by the HMI after processing the value.

If you have selected the setting "Log off current user" as **Log off Behaviour**, you can use the "Logoff value" fields to define the values that PM-LOGON writes to the associated variables when the card leaves the field. If you do not specify a value, an empty string is written to the bound variable.

Log off behavior	Action, when card leaves reader	In the case that the RFID card leaves the reader an action can be defined how PM-LOGON should react in this case. The following alternatives are currently available:
		 Do nothing A currently logged in user remains logged in. Log off current user A currently logged in user is logged off. For this purpose, a value of "-1" is written into the password tag.
HMI	Set credentials in	For actions that require specific permissions the HMI Runtime
Runtime	open login window	displays a login dialog
	opon login mindow	

Set password in password prompt	If this option is activated and a card is brought into the detection range of the reader, the user name and password are entered by PM-LOGON and the dialog is automatically closed as if the OK button would have been clicked. This option is used by the PM-LOGON Basic Runtime when the user administration is done within the HMI Runtime.
of User view	If this option is activated DM LOCON Runtime validates the
credentials	to the target system. If the validation fails, the variables will not be written.
Replace Password with	This option can be used to replace the password with a default value before writing to the bound variable.
Groups separator	Defines the separator for the group list
Access HMI Runtime via	This setting determines by which method the tags of the HMI Runtime should be written:
	SOAP WebserviceOPC DA Server
SOAP URI for Tag Access, SOAP Username und SOAP Password	This option is available when the SOAP access has been selected as the method to write the tags to the HMI Runtime. For this access method the URI defined here will be used. By default, the URI is: http://localhost/soap/RuntimeAccess
	Additionally, to enable writing tags to the HMI Runtime via SOAP access, a user that has the permissions to write tags via SOAP needs to be configured. These login credentials can be entered here. This user is configured in the "WinCC Internet Settings" Control Panel Applet (described below).
	By default, the username and password "PM-LOGON" is used. For security reasons these default settings should by all means be changed.
OPC Connection String	This option is available when "OPC DA Server" has been selected as the method to write the tags to the HMI Runtime. The connection string can be created by using the "Browse" button that opens up a dialog in which available OPC servers are listed for browsing.

		Select OPC Server
	Primary OPC UA Connection Uri	This option is available if "OPC UA Server" is selected as the method to write tags to the HMI Runtime. The default Uri of the OPC UA Server of WinCC Runtime Advanced is: "opc.tcp://127.0.0.1:4870" The detailed steps to configure the connection to the OPC UA Server are described in chapter 4.3.17.3.
	Secondary OPC UA Connection Uri	This option is available if "OPC UA Server" is selected as the method to write tags to the HMI Runtime. A second OPC UA server can be configured here. If the connection to the primary OPC UA Server cannot be established, the secondary OPC UA server will be targeted. The default Uri of the OPC UA Server of WinCC Runtime Advanced is: "opc.tcp://127.0.0.1:4870" The detailed steps to configure the connection to the OPC UA Server are described in chapter 4.3.17.3.
HMI Engineering	Set password in password prompt of User administration	This option is used by the PM-LOGON Basic Runtime if users are to be managed in the TIA Portal engineering.

4.3.17.1 SOAP access

In order to set tag values in the runtime the SOAP-Service needs to be activated in the project settings.

	Project tree 🔲 🖣	PM-LOGON_V15 → PC-	-System [SIMATIC PC station] HMI_RT [WinCC RT Advanced] Runtime settings
	Devices		
	1 III III III III III III III III III I	General	Services
		Services	
l ē	PM-LOGON_V15	Screens	Remote control
zat	🗳 Add new device	Keyboard	☑ Start Sm@rtServer
<u>e</u>	Devices & networks	Good Manufacturin	
/Is	Comfort Panel [TP1200 Comfort]	Alarms	Read/write tage
	Comfort Pro Panel [TP1900 Comfort P	User administration	read/write tags
	PC-System [SIMATIC PC station]	Language & font	Operate as OPC server
	Device configuration	OPC settings	OPC DCOM Server
	🖳 Online & diagnostics	Tag settings	OPC Unified Architecture Server
	🛓 🔻 📄 HMI_RT [WinCC RT Advanced]		
	Device configuration		HTTP channel server
	👔 👔 Runtime settings		Web service SOAP
	Screens		
	🕨 ি Screen management		Diagnostics
	🕨 🔚 HMI tags		
	🔁 Connections		_ HTML pages
	🖂 HMI alarms		•
	🗐 Recipes		SMTP communication
	Historical data		
	Scripts		server name:
	5 Scheduled tasks		Port: 25
	🖒 Cycles		Sender name:
	Reports		E-mail address:
	🔛 Text and graphic lists		
	🛔 👔 User administration		
	Ungrouped devices		Password: *****
	🕨 🚟 Security settings		Secure connection required (SSL)
	🕨 🙀 Common data		

Furthermore a user needs to be configured for the MiniWeb server. For WinCC V13 (or newer) Runtime Advanced this setting can be found in the configuration applet located in the control panel:

 Action Center Color Management Default Programs Ease of Access Center Folder Options Internet Options Location Settings Network and Sharing Center Power Options RemoteApp and Desktop Connection: Speech Recognition Taskbar and Navigation WinCC Runtime Advanced Internet (Work Folders 	 Adminis Comme Device 1 Family S Family S Family S Fonts Java Mail (32 Notifica Program Storage Storage Troubleshooting Windows Defender 	Remote Tag access Read/write Read only User Administration Start Web-Server Close Web-Server Close Web-Server Close Web-Server Windows Firewall	 BitLocker Drive Encryption Date and Time Display Flash Player (32-bit) Indexing Options Language Mouse Phone and Modem Region Sound System WinCC Chip Card Terminal (32-bit) Windows Update
--	---	--	---

For this user to write tag values at runtime the permission "SoapUser" needs to be granted to the login.


4.3.17.2 OPC DA access

In order to write tag values to the runtime via the OPC service, the OPC-DCOM server needs to be activated in the project settings.

Project tree 🛛 🔳 🖣	PM-LOGON_V15 → PC-S	System [SIMATIC PC station] → HMI_RT [W	/inCC RT Advanced]
Devices			
1 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	General Services	Services	
PMLOGON_V15 Add new device Devices & networks PC-System [SIMATIC Device configuration Online & diagnostics HML_RT[WnCC RT Device configura Runtime settings Screens Screen manage HML htt tags	Screens Keyboard Good Manufacturin Alarms User administration Language & font OPC settings Tag settings	Remote control Read/write tags	Start Sm@rtServer Operate as OPC server OPC DCOM Server OPC Unified Architecture Server HTIP channel server Web service SOAP
Connections HMI alarms Recipes		Diagnostics	☑ HTML pages
		SMTP communication Server name: Port: Sender name: E-mail address: Login: Password:	25



4.3.17.3 OPC UA Access

In order to write tag values to the runtime via the OPC service, at first the OPC-DCOM server needs to be activated in the project settings.

Project tree 🛛 🔳 🖣	PM-LOGON_V15 ► PC-S	ystem [SIMATIC PC station] HMI_RT [W	/inCC RT Advanced] Runtime settings
Devices			
1 III III III III III III III III III I	General Services	Services	
PMLOGON_V15 Add new device Devices & networks PC-System [SIMATIC Device configuration Gonline & diagnostics HML_RT [WnCC RT Device configura Runtime settings Screens FS Screens Fy Screen manage	Screens Keyboard Good Manufacturin Alarms User administration Language & font OPC settings Tag settings	Remote control Read/write tags	Start Sm@rtServer Operate as OPC server OPC DCOM Server OPC Unified Architecture Server HTTP channel server Web service SOAP
HMI tags Connections HMI alarms Recipes Historical data	4	Diagnostics	✓ HTML pages
Common data Congress Congress		SMTP communication Server name: Port: Sender name: E-mail address: Login: Password:	25



The Uri and port, The OPC UA Server of WinCC Runtime Advanced is listening is configured in the OPC settings of the TIA project.

After configuring the OPC UA Server of WinCC Runtime Advanced, you have to initiate the exchange of the Security certificates between OPC UA Server and PM-LOGON Runtime (OPC Client). Please follow these steps:

- 1. Start WinCC Runtime Advanced to get OPC UA Server running.
- 2. Open the configuration of PM-LOGON Runtime and select the section "OPC and SOAP Access".
- 3. As an interface to the HMI Runtime select "OPC UA Server". Make sure that the configured Uri is the same as configured in the OPC Settings of the TIA project.
- Accept the Security Certificate of the OPC UA Server by clicking the button "Accept Certificate". The certificate will be stored in the directory "C:\ProgramData\Siemens\Process Management\PM-LOGON\Runtime\OPCUA\ Certificates" by PM-LOGON.
- 5. Thereafter click the button "Connect" to establish a connection to the OPC UA Server. This first attempt to connect will fail. The PM-LOGON Runtime has transmitted its own security certificate to the OPC UA Server. The OPC UA Server rejected the connection attempt because it does not trust the certificate yet.
- - "C:\ProgramData\Siemens\CoRtHmiRTm\MiniWeb1x.x.x\SystemRoot\SSL\certs".
- 7. If you then try to connect to the OPC UA Server again, the connection should be established successfully.
- 8. After connecting to the OPC UA Server, you can now assign the target variables of WinCC Runtime Advanced via the tag selection dialog.

The accepted or rejected certificates from communication partners can be managed via the section "Certificates" in the configuration of PM-LOGON Runtime.

Important notice:

After the upgrade from PM-LOGON V1.x to V2.x the security certificates of OPC UA Server and PM-LOGON Runtime must be updated or exchanged again, if necessary.

4.3.17.4 TIA project configuration

The project has to be set up to utilize SIMATIC Logon, e.g.:

Ma Siemens - E:WinCCProjectsUPMAddonsUogonDemologonDemo									
Project Edit View Insert Online Options Tools Window Help									
📑 📑 🔚 Save project 昌 🐰 🗐 🗊 🗙 🛰	🜁 💁 🔒 save project 🚇 🐰 🗉 🛍 🗶 🍋 🛨 (🛎 🗟 🖳 🌆 🖳 🖉 🦉 Go online 🧬 Go offline 🗼 🖪 🖪 🗰 🛠 😑 📋								
Project tree	↓ LogonDemo → PC-Syste	m 1 [SIMATIC PC station] > HML RT 1 [WinCC RT Advanced] > Runtime setting							
		, [
Devices									
	General	······, ····							
	Services	Group-specific rights for user administration: 📃							
5 💌 🛅 LogonDemo	Screens								
Add new device	Keyboard	Password							
Devices & networks	Good Manufacturin	T B35WOTU							
PC-System_1 [SIMATIC PC station]	Alarms	Enable password aging:							
Device configuration	User administration	Password validity (days): 90 🖨							
Online & diagnostics	Language & font	Prewarning time (days): 7							
🛓 🔻 🛅 HMI_RT_1 [WinCC RT Advanced]	OPC settings	Password generations: 3							
Device configuration	ag settings								
😮 Online & diagnostics		Password complexity							
Y Runtime settings		Must include special characters:							
Screens	-	Muscificidos special characters.							
Screen management	•	Must include number:							
HMI tags		Minimum password length: 📴 📮							
2 Connections									
MIII alarms		SIMATIC Logon							
Recipes		🖌 Enable SIMATIC Logon							
Historical data		Apply user administration from							
Cabadulad taalu									
5 Scheduled tasks									
Peportr		Indows computer							
Text and graphic lists		Server data							
lig User administration		Server name: 127.0.0.1							
Common data		Port number: 16389							
Documentation settings		Windows domain:							
Languages & resources		Encrypted transfer:							
		chargeted durisier.							

Additionally two tags of type "WString" have to be created. These tags will be used by PM-LOGON Runtime to write the username and password, e.g.:

- PMLOGON_USERNAME
- PMLOGON_PASSWORD

Please make sure that the tags have been created with a sufficient initial length setting, e.g. at least 20 characters.

In order to perform the login operation a script is needed that is executed upon tag change:

```
Sub PasswordTagChanged()
    If SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = "-1" Then
        Logoff
        SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = ""
    ElseIf SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = "" Then
        Logoff
    Else
        Dim usernameTag
        usernameTag = SmartTags("PMLOGON_USERNAME")
        Dim passwordTag
        passwordTag = SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD")
        Logon passwordTag, usernameTag
        SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = passwordTag
        End If
End Sub
```

```
Siemens AG
PM-LOGON Manual.docx
28.01.2022
```

This script must be executed upon tag change of the password tag (in this example "PMLOGON_PASSWORD"). "-1" is the default value that is written to the bound variable when PM-LOGON is logging off a user. If you have specified a different value in the PM-LOGON configuration, adjust this value.



4.3.18 Configuration of the BRAUMAT/SISTAR Provider

Via the plugin "BRAUMAT/SISTAR Provider" the login to a BRAUMAT/SISTAR system via PM-LOGON can be configured.

BRAUMAT/SISTAR Configuration		
Configuration		
Plugin path:	C:\Program Files (x86)\SIEMENS\Braumat\sys\ISistar.dll	
Authentication domain:	 domain>	
Authentication credentials:	Provide usemame and password]
Log off Behaviour		
Action, when card leaves reader:	Do nothing -]

Plugin path:

The path to the BRAUMAT/SISTAR plugin for PM-LOGON must be specified here.

Authentication domain:

The domain, against which the user authenticates.

Authentication credentials:

- None:
 - There is no logon to BRAUMAT/SISTAR.
- Provide username and password: When logging on, the user name and password are transferred to BRAUMAT/SISTAR.
- Provide username and empty password: The user name and an empty string for the password are transferred during logon.
- Provide empty username and empty password: When logging in, both an empty string as user name and an empty string for the password are passed.



Action when card leaves reader:

- Do nothing: There is no logout at BRAUMAT/SISTAR.
- Provide last logged on username: When logging out, the user name of the user last logged in via PM-LOGON is transferred.
- Provide empty username: When logging out, an empty string is passed as the user name.

Not all readers support the signaling that the RFID card has been removed.

Activate the BRAUMAT/SISTAR Logon Provider by selecting "Enable Provider" in the context menu. You can activate multiple logon providers, e.g. to log a user on to SIMATIC Logon and simultaneously write variables via OPC or SOAP.

4.3.19 Configuration of the Generic Dll Logon Provider

lext						
Generic DII Logon Provider Configurat	ion					
Configuration						
Plugin path:	C:\GenericDllProvider\GenericDllPlugin.dll					
Thumbprint (CRC SHA-256):	5EBB060F7C97C5E4CB7CA61C9FC23963D9FDA836B4E77749757C9A06A22462D5					
Authentication domain:	domain.local					
Logon Behaviour						
Require validated credentials						
Submit Password						
Replace Password with	Default					
Submit PIN						
Submit Groups						
Groups separator:	:					
Submit Device Id						
Log off Behaviour						
Action, when card leaves reader:	Do nothing ~					

The Generic DII Logon Provider can be used to connect a third-party system to PM-LOGON Runtime.

As an interface to the target system, the third-party system must provide a DLL that implements the following interface methods:

- BOOL WINAPI GenericLogonProvider_LogonW (const wchar_t* pszUser, const wchar_t* pszPassword)
- BOOL WINAPI GenericLogonProvider_LogonExW (const wchar_t* pszUser, const wchar_t* pszPassword,

const wchar_t* pszPin, const wchar_t* pszUserGroups, const wchar_t* pszDeviceID)

• BOOL WINAPI GenericLogonProvider_LogoffW(const wchar_t* pszUser)

The path to this DLL is stored in the configuration of the Generic Logon Provider Plugin of PM-LOGON Runtime

If the Generic DII Logon provider is activated in the PM-LOGON Runtime configuration, the DLL is loaded at runtime and the interface methods are called on the following events:

- The reader signals to PM-LOGON Runtime that a transponder has been detected.
- If an assigned user can be determined for the transponder in the Active Directory, PM-LOGON Runtime calls the *GenericLogonProvider_LogonW()* or the *GenericLogonProvider_LogonExW()* method of the interface DLL, depending on the configuration..

The configuration of the Generic DII Logon provider can be used to set which data is passed in addition to the user name when calling the method:

- Submit password:
 - The password is passed to the dll. Via "Replace Password with" a replacement value can be defined which is passed instead of the password.
- Submit PIN: If a PIN has been stored for the user in the user repository, this is passed to the target system.
- Submit Groups:

Only user groups in which the user is a direct member are transferred. Memberships of groups in groups cannot be resolved.

The list of user groups is concatenated to a string with the separator defined in Groups Separator.

It must therefore be ensured that the linked variable has a sufficient length.

• Submit Device Id:

The name of the reader that recognized the UID is transmitted. If it is the locally connected reader, "local" is transmitted for this. If the local PM-LOGON Runtime is notified by PM-LOGON Server, the name of the corresponding reader is transmitted by PM-LOGON Server.

If only the passing of username and password is configured in the plugin, the *GenericLogonProvider_LogonW()* method is called.

If additionally the passing of PIN, user groups or DeviceID was configured, the method *GenericLogonProvider_LogonExW()* is called instead.

For parameters which are not used, an empty string is passed by PM-LOGON Runtime.

- The reader signals PM-LOGON Runtime that the transponder has left the reader field: The *GenericLogonProvider_LogoffW()* method is called. The configuration of the Generic Logon Provider can be used to set which data is passed when calling the method:
 - Username of the last logged in user: The username of the last user logged in by PM-LOGON is passed for pszUser.
 - Empty username: An empty string is passed for the username.

Authentication of the user against Active Directory must be performed by the third-party system itself.

To secure the communication with the DLL, the thumbprint of the plugin dll is registered in the configuration of the local PM-LOGON Runtime. At runtime PM-LOGON Runtime can then verify the DLL via the registered thumbprint.

If you need further information about the connection of a third party system via this Logon Provider, please contact the WinCC Competence Center Mannheim (mailto:winccaddon.automation@siemens.com).

4.3.20 Configuration of the Windows Logon Provider

Via the plugin "Windows Logon Provider" the login to Windows via PM-LOGON can be configured. **To use and configure this plugin, PM-LOGON Runtime must be run in Service Mode.**

Windows Logon Configuration		
Configuration		
Logon Domain:	domain.local	
Authentication Mode:	Provide usemame and password \sim	

Logon domain:

You can enter the domain, to which the user should be logged in. If this field is empty, the local computer name will be used.

Authentication Mode:

Here, you must select which Logon Mode should be used.

- Provide username and password: The user will be logged in with the stored credentials.
- Logon with password: The username will be preset, the user must enter its password in order to login.
- Logon with PIN: The user is prompted to enter his PIN. If the PIN entered matches the PIN stored in the user repository, the user is logged in with the stored credentials. If no PIN has been stored for the user, the "Logon with password" mode is automatically applied.

Activate the Windows Logon Provider by selecting "Enable Provider" in the context menu. You can activate multiple logon providers, e.g. to log a user on to SIMATIC Logon and simultaneously write variables via OPC or SOAP.

The PM-LOGON tile in the lock screen will only be shown, if the Windows Logon Provider is activated.

4.4 Diagnostics

Logging of trace information into log files for diagnostic purposes can be configured on the page "Logging" within the configuration section ("Enable Logging").

The level of information written to the logs can be defined by selecting one of the options from the drop-down list "Log Level":

- All:
 - All messages
- Error: Only errorsWarning:
- Warnings and errors
- Information:
 Information management warnings
- Information messages, warnings and errors
 Verbose: Detail information, Information messages, warnings and errors

File logging should only be activated for diagnosing problems and should not be activated permanently. The size of the log files is limited to 10MB and the log files are automatically deleted after 7 days. The folder where the log files are stored can be opened by clicking the link to the right of the label "Logfile Folder".

Settings	×
Configuration Configuration Admitto USB Reader Omnikey USB Reader Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader Admitto USB Reader Admitto Admitto Computer Remote PM-LOGON Runtime SIMATIC Logon SIMATIC Logon WinCCViewer RT	Summary Webservice Logging Logfiles Enable Logging: Image: Compare the second se

4.5 Operation

The setup routine creates an entry in the start menu and the PM-LOGON Runtime is configured to automatically start upon system restart after the user login of the operating system.

PM-LOGON Runtime	2		x
File Help			
Runtime			
i 🕨 💵 🛛 🎦			
Communication			
Timestamp	Туре	Message	*
20.04.16 12:41:53.430	0	Loading Computer SAM Repository configuration from file <c:\programdata\siemen< td=""><td></td></c:\programdata\siemen<>	
20.04.16 12:41:53.430	0	Computer SAM Repository configuration loaded.	
20.04.16 12:41:53.430		Enumerating logon providers	
20.04.16 12:41:53.445		<2> logon providers found.	
20.04.16 12:41:53.445	0	- ProviderType <simatic logon=""> (SIMATIC Logon Provider)</simatic>	
20.04.16 12:41:53.446		ProviderType <winccviewer rt=""> (WinCCViewer RT for Web Navigator Provider)</winccviewer>	
20.04.16 12:41:53.451		$\label{eq:loading} {\sf WinCCV} iewerRT \ {\sf provider \ configuration \ from \ file \ <\!C:\ \ ProgramData\ \ Siemen}$	
20.04.16 12:41:53.451	0	Configuration refreshed successfully.	
20.04.16 12:41:53.452		Repository <local computer=""> connected.</local>	
20.04.16 12:41:53.465		Starting up Webservice on port <8090>	Ξ
20.04.16 12:41:53.559		Webservice up and running on port <8090>	
			-
Rupping			
Kunning			.:

The PM-LOGON Runtime is activated if the "Play" button has been pressed. After activation the connections to the reading device, the user repository and the login provider are established. If a RFID card is detected by the reader, the login information associated with the UID of the card is determined from the user repository and handed over to the login provider (e.g. SIMATIC Logon).

5 PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels

5.1 Introduction

For the execution on Comfort Panels the "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" is required.

While the PM-LOGON Runtime is determining the login credentials of the user that has been assigned to a card sensed by the reading device directly from e.g. the active directory, this process is performed indirectly by the PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels:



PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels

The login credentials are queried from one or two remote PM-LOGON Runtime instances (1), that are relaying the query to an active directory (2). The response delivered from the active directory server (3) is then relayed back to the PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels (4). The username and password that have been received on the panel are written into tags on the Panel Runtime (5). Within the panel runtime a script is executed that performs the login operation by utilizing the system function "Logon".

5.2 Installation on a Comfort Panel

The following prerequisites are required:

- Panel:
 - SIMATIC TP Comfort Panel with x86 processor architecture(starting from 7"); KP400 Comfort and KTP400 Comfort are not supported!
 - SIMATIC TP Comfort Pro Panel with x86 processor architecture
 - A supported card reader:

- SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/1070R or
- o Admitto USB card reader operating in the mode "active send"
- A free USB port on the panel
- Engineering PC with TIA Portal V13 or V14
- At least one PC with PM-LOGON Runtime on the same network
- Optional: A USB keyboard and mouse connected to the panel is recommended during configuration

The installation is done by "SIMATIC ProSave". In order to add this option to ProSave, the "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels Setup.exe" needs to be installed on the engineering PC.



The setup installs the option "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels V1.x"into "SIMATIC ProSave", which is part of the TIA engineering system. If "SIMATIC ProSave" cannot be found on the target system the setup will be cancelled.

After successful installation "SIMATIC ProSave" can be started and the option "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" can be transferred to the panel.

र्चे SIMATIC ProSave V15.1.0 [Options]					×
Selection: 36)\Common Files\Siemens\PTProsave\AddOn				Device sta	atus
Available options:		Installed option	ns:		
Korean fonts Media Player Microsoft Internet Explorer PM-LOGON Basic Runtime for Panels V1.7 Printer Driver Brightek V1.4 Printer Driver Brother PT ouch-QL650TD V1 Printer Driver HTML V1.4 Printer Driver PDF V1.4 Printer Driver PostScript V1.4 M-LOGON Runtime for Panels V1.7	>> <<			Cancel	
Completed		F	TP1200 (Comfort PRO	Ethernet

After the transfer has completed successfully the panel will be restarted.

"PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" is automatically executed upon each restart of the panel so no further activities are required. If the application has been shut down, it can be manually restarted by using the link from the start menu "PM-LOGON"→"PM-LOGON Runtime For Panels".

The transfer via "SIMATIC ProSave" does also install the required device drivers for the SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R and the Admitto USB readers which are ready for operation after the panel has been restarted.

The simultaneous installation of "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" and "PM-LOGON Basic Runtime for Panels" on the same device is not supported.

If an older version of "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" that has not been installed via ProSave has been manually installed on the device, this old version needs to be removed completely before the new version is installed. This can e.g. be done by loading the firmware image again onto the device (e.g. also from ProSave). Please perform a backup of the device before that in order to prevent data loss.

5.3 Configuration

For the operation the "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" as well as the access to the "PM-LOGON Runtime" and the HMI project needs to be configured.

5.3.1 PM-LOGON Runtime

PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels gets the credentials to perform a login operation from a PC on the network where PM-LOGON Runtime is executed. On the PM-LOGON Runtime the functionality to provide information to remote PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels instances via the integrated web service needs to be enabled:



6	Settings	×
Configuration Econ Devices Addito USB Reader Omnikey USB Reader Adtve Directory Cal Computer Management Cal Computer Management Sanabic Logon	Summary Webservice Logging Webservice Erable Webservice Port: 8090	
		Close

5.3.2 TIA portal project

The project must be configured to enable the writing of tags to the runtime via the SOAP service. This can be done in the services settings for the runtime by activating the "Web-Service SOAP" option:

٧A	1 Siemens - e:\temp\LogonTest\LogonTest								
Pr	Project Edit View Insert Online Options Tools Window Help								
	👎 🎦 🔒 Save project 🚇 🐰 🗐 🖆 🗶 🛸 宁 🕐 🗄 🛄 🔐 🎧 🌽 Go online 🧭 Go online 🗼 🛄 📪 📯 🔄 📗								
	Project tree 🔲 🖣	LogonTest HMI_1 [TP1200 Comfort] Runtime settings							
	Devices								
		General	Services						
. <u></u>	▼ 🔄 LogonTest	Screens	Remote control						
lizat	Add new device	Keyboard Good Manufacturin	Start Sm@rtServer						
Sua	HML 1 [TP1200 Comfort]	Alarms							
i,	Device configuration	User administration	Read/write tags						
	Online & diagnostics	Language & font	Operate as OPC-UA server						
	Runtime settings	OPC settings	HTTP channel server						
	Screens	Tag settings	Web convice COAR						
	Screen management		Web service SOAP						
	🕨 🔁 HMI tags								
	😋 Connections		Diagnostics						
	🖂 HMI alarms		HTML pages						
	🗐 Recipes								
	Historical data								
	Scripts		SMIP Communication						
	5 Scheduled tasks		Server name:						
	Cycles		Port: 25						
	Reports		Name of sender:						
	Text and graphic lists		E mail addrace:						
	🙀 User administration								
	Common data		Login:						
	Documentation settings		Password: ******						
	Languages & resources		Secure connection required (SSL)						
	Online access	< III >							

The project also needs to be configured to utilize SIMATIC Logon for user authentication e.g.:



Furthermore two string tags have to be created where PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels is writing the login credentials to, e.g.:

- PMLOGON_USERNAME
- PMLOGON_PASSWORD

Please make sure that the tags have been created with a sufficient initial length setting, e.g. at least 20 characters.

In order to perform the login operation a script is needed that is executed upon tag change:

```
Sub PasswordTagChanged()
    If SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = "-1" Then
        Logoff
        SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = ""
    ElseIf SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = "" Then
        Logoff
    Else
        Dim usernameTag
        usernameTag = SmartTags("PMLOGON_USERNAME")
        Dim passwordTag
        passwordTag = SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD")
        Logon passwordTag, usernameTag
        SmartTags("PMLOGON_PASSWORD") = passwordTag
        End If
End Sub
```

This script must be executed upon tag change of the password tag (in this example "PMLOGON_PASSWORD").

	Project tree		LogonTest → HMI_	1 [TP1200 Comfo	rt] → HMI tags → D	efault tag table	e [3]		_∎≡×
	Devices							🔩 HMI tags	💺 System tags
	1 O O	•	🥩 🖻 🖻 🟅						
			Default tag tabl	e					
ioi	👔 Runtime settings	~	Name 🔺		Data type	Connection	PLC name	PLC tag	Address
zat	Screens		PMLOGON_	PASSWORD	WString 🔳	<nternal tag=""></nternal>		<undefined></undefined>	
ile	🕨 📝 Screen management		MLOGON_	USERNAME	WString	<internal tag=""></internal>		<undefined></undefined>	
/ist	🔻 🔙 HMI tags		<add new=""></add>						
	🗞 Show all tags	-							
	📑 Add new tag table	-			III		1		/
	🍯 Default tag table [3]		Discrete alarms	Analog alarm	s Logging tags				
	🍡 Connections			Alarma Anua	A.L			and design of a structure of a struc	the UNIX estimated
	🖂 HMI alarms		U	Alarm text	Alarm	class i rigger t	ag ingge Inggei	address Acknowledg At	KN HMI acknowi
	Recipes		<add new=""></add>						
	🛄 Historical data								
	 Scripts 		<						>
	 WB scripts 		DMLOCON DASSW						
	Add new VB function		PIVILOGON_PASSW				Properties	🛄 Info 🧾 💆 Diagr	lostics
	PasswordTagChanged	*	Properties E	vents Texts					
	✓ Details view			1 ± ∓					
	Dotailo Holi				- - , •				
			Value change						
	Name Data type Address				PasswordTagChanged				•
	PMLOGON WString			· · ·	Add function>				
	PMLOGON WString								
	🥺 @Diagnostic SInt			<u>}</u>					
				<					>
*									

5.3.3 MiniWeb

Furthermore a user needs to be configured for the MiniWeb server.

On the Comfort Panel these settings are located under Settings in the Start Center:







For this user to write tag values at runtime the permission "SoapUser" needs to be granted to this login.

5.3.4 PM-LOGON Configurator for Panels

The configuration application of "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" can be accessed via the start menu link "PM-LOGON" → "PM-LOGON Configurator for Panels":

PM-LOGON Configurato	r for Panels
Common PM-LOGON Runtime HMI Runtime Card Reader Security	Common Start hidden Beep when token has been read Beep when read token could not be processed Beep when read token could not be processed Enable On Screen Keyboard Log off current user when card leaves reader Set credentials in open login dialog Authentication
	Cancel

Common	HMI Runtime	
PM-LOGON Runtime HMI Runtime Card Reader Security	Tag access OPC UA URI for Tag Access:	OPC UA
	Write Username to Tag: Write Password to Tag: Write status to Tag:	PMLOGON_USERNAME PMLOGON_PASSWORD PMLOGON_STATUS

Section	Setting	Description
Common	Start hidden	If this option has been activated the PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels is started hidden and is only visible on the system tray; the main window can be opened by double clicking the symbol on the tray.
	Beep when token has been read	An information sound will be played when a RFID card has been recognized by PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels.
	Beep when read token could not be processed	An error sound will be played if the card detected by the reader could not successfully be processed. The processing may fail e.g. for the following reasons:
	 No remote PM-LOGON Runtime could be contacted. No login credentials have been configured for the RFID card presented to the reader. The login credentials could not be transferred to the HMI runtime. 	
		The exact reason why the login has failed can be narrowed down by looking into the diagnostic log.
	Enable On Screen Keyboard	If a login dialog is displayed by the PM-LOGON Runtime, this setting determines if the on screen keyboard should be displayed to enter the password.
		This setting is only relevant if the "Authentication credentials" have been configured as "Provide username".
	Log off current user, when card leaves reader	If this option has been activated a currently logged in user is logged off when the previously detected card is removed from the card reader. For this purpose a value of "-1" is written into the password tag.

		Please note that not all card reading devices provide a notification when a RFID card has left the reader detection range.
	Set credentials in open login dialog	If this option has been activated the login credentials associated with the presented RFID card are written into an eventually currently open login dialog displayed by the HMI Runtime.
		The login dialog is always displayed by the HMI Runtime when an action is to be executed that requires specific permissions that are not granted to an eventually currently logged in user. "PM-LOGON Runtime" enters the user name and the password into this dialog automatically and closes the dialog with OK.
	Authentication credentials	This setting defines how the login information is being used to perform a login:
		 Provide username The login dialog will be displayed and the username is prefilled with the username associated with the RFID card detected by the reader. The user has to manually enter the password. PM-LOGON Login User name: User name: User name: OK Cance Provide username and password The login dialog will not be displayed and the username and password associated with the RFID card detected by the reader is automatically handed over to the runtime to perform the login.
PM- LOGON	Uri / Second Uri	AT least one PM-LOGON Runtime has to be entered that will be queried for login credentials when a RFID card has been detected.
Runtime		If two addresses have been entered both PM-LOGON Runtime instances will be queried simultaneously. However only one response is needed for operation, the second response will be discarded. Entering two addresses provides a redundancy mechanism if one PM-LOGON Runtime cannot be reached on the network.
		The address is entered in the following format:
		http:// <computer>:<port></port></computer>
		COMPUTER:

		IP or hostname of the PC, where PM-LOGON Runtime is executed.
		PORT:Port number in the PM-LOGON Runtime that is used for the web service. The default setting is 8090. The port number can be changed within the PM-LOGON Runtime.Please note that the access is performed by using the HTTP protocol. If a proxy server is being used on the system, it might be necessary to bypass the proxy.
		The login information is always transferred in a encrypted format.
HMI Runtime	SOAP URI for Tag Access	Username and password are written to tags of the PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels. To enable this access the SOAP access has to be enabled for the panel runtime.
		SOAP is based on HTTP and communication with the runtime is established by using a URI. For the panel runtime, this URI currently defaults to the following format:
		http://127.0.0.1/soap/RuntimeAccess
	SOAP Username / Password	For security reason accessing the SOAP service for the reading and writing of tags requires authentication credentials. The login information of the user that has been configured in 5.3.3needs to be entered here.
		The password is stored in the configuration in encrypted format.
	OPC UA Connection Uri	Wurde OPC UA zum Schreiben der Variablen ausgewählt, so ist hier die Uri zum OPC UA Server anzugeben. Die Einrichtung einer OPC UA-Verbindung ist im Kapitel 4.3.17.3 beschrieben.
	Write Username / Password to Tag	If a PM-LOGON Runtime has been successfully queried for login credentials that are associated to the detected RFID card the username and password will be written into tags by using the SOAP web service of the panel runtime.
		The password that is used to perform the login operation needs to be written to the tag in clear text i.e. not encrypted. Therefore for security reasons this tag should not be displayed anywhere in the HMI of the panel.
	Write status to Tag	If a variable is bound here, "PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels" cyclically transmits status information regarding the PM-LOGON Runtime and the connection status of the reader every 5 seconds. For this purpose, 2 status bits are written:
		 Bit 0: While the PM-LOGON Runtime is running, this bit is written cyclically with the value 1 Bit 1:
		If the connection between the reader and the PM-LOGON Runtime is established, this bit is written cyclically with the value 1; if there is no connection to the reader, the bit is written with the value 0.

Card Reader	der Reader Type Selection of the card reading device. The following card reader supported:					
		SIMATIC RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R				
		Admitto USB reader				
	Serial Port	If "Admitto USB reader" has been selected as the card reader a serial port needs to be specified. By default this port is set to "COM4:".				
		Please note that for the addressing of a serial port a colon (:) at the end is required, e.g. "COM4:"				
	Reverse UID	If different readers are used it may be required to reverse the byte order of the UID read from the device.				
	Use AutoRead Mode	Only for RF1040R/RF1060R/RF1070R:				
		If the option "Use AutoRead Mode" is activated the reader doesn't read the card UID but automatically reads a configured memory block depending on the card type.				
		For this it is necessary that the reader is prepared with an "AutoRead" configuration.				
Security	Require password to access configuration	The configuration of the "PM-LOGON Configurator for Panels" can be protected against unauthorized access by specifying a password. If this option is activated and a password has been entered, this password will be required the next time "PM-LOGON Configurator for Panels" is started.				
		The password can be changed by clicking the button "Set".				
	Hide UIDs in log	Since UIDs read from RFID cards might represent sensitive information, the UIDs can be hidden from the diagnostic log output.				

Changes made to the configuration are saved when the OK button is clicked and the confirmation dialog that is displayed has been confirmed. Changed configuration settings only become active after the runtime has been restarted.

5.4 Diagnostics

The main window of PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels is shown only if the application has not been started in hidden mode ("Start hidden" in the configurator is deactivated) or if the window has been brought into the foreground by double clicking its tray icon:



The window displays a list with diagnostic entries that are sorted by timestamp in ascending order (new entries are always added to the end of the list). The list contains a maximum of 1000 entries.

pe	Timestamp	Message	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Reading configuration	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Starting	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Starting Processing	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Trying to connect to card reader	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Connecting to reader on port 'COM4:'	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Successfully connected to reader on port 'COM4:'	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:18	Connected to card reader	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:24	UID 8034EBFA894604 read on port 'COM4:'	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:24	Query logon information for user '8034EBFA894604' from 'http://192.168.104.1:8090'	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:24	Query logon information for user '8034EBFA894604' from 'http://192.168.104.2:8090'	
Error	07.04.2017 12:03:29	Servers didn't respond in the specified time interval	
Info	07.04.2017 12:03:29	Card left on port 'COM4:'	

If the system does not react as expected the log can be checked to narrow down the cause of the problem. In the above example e.g. both configured remote servers cannot be reached.

The diagnostic entries are not persistently stored.

New entries are added to the end to the list. If the option "Auto Scroll" is activated, the view will always be scrolled to the end of the list and the most recent entry will be selected. If another entry is selected manually by clicking on it, the "Auto Scroll" will be deactivated. The deactivated "Auto Scroll" prevents the list entries from moving in order to determine the cause of the problem at hand.

By using the minimize button the main window will be hidden, leaving the application actively running in the background. By double clicking the tray icon the main window can be brought back into view.

6 Changing the login password from a WinCC screen

6.1 Introduction

The password of a user login stored in PM-LOGON and also in the window user management can be changed from within a WinCC screen. In order to do this a screen needs to be created with the required internal tags. Additionally a VB script will be needed that utilizes a so called COM-Object("PMLogon.RuntimeCOMAccess") that has been installed together with the setup routine of PM-LOGON, which offers the required functionality to change the password in parallel in both locations.

In order to enable the COM-object to access the PM-LOGON Runtime the runtime has to be started and the web service has to be enabled (Configuration->Webservice, see. chapter. 4.3)

Note:

If the user repository "Local Computer" is used, the PM-LOGON Runtime has to be executed under a Windows account with administrative privileges. In this case it is preferable to automate the startup of the PM-LOGON Runtime by using the Windows scheduled task feature as opposed to

the default autostart mechanism. The reason for this is that with the scheduled tasks feature the account that is to be used for the application to start can be explicitly specified.

6.2 Creating the WinCC screen

The "ChangePassword()" method that performs the actual password changing action requires the following three parameters:

The currently logged in user, the old password and the new password.

First all required tags need to be created. The following internal tags are needed:

ariablenhaushalt	~	📦 Variablen [PM_LOGON]	Suchen		<mark>,</mark>
111 Variablenhaushalt		Name	Datentyp	Länge Forma	itanpa 🔺
🗄 🍄 Interne Variablen		1 PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
PM_LOGON		2 PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT_TEXT	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
Script		3 PML_EXTENDED_PROPERTY_1	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
TagLoggingRt		4 PML_EXTENDED_PROPERTY_2	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
Strukturvariablen		5 PML_NEW_PASSWORD	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
		6 PML_OLD_PASSWORD	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
		7 PML_PASSWORD	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
		8 PML_REPEAT_NEW_PASSWORD	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	
		9 PML_USERNAME	Textvariable 16-Bit Zeichensatz	255	=
	1	10 💥			
	1	11			
	1	12			
	1	13			
	1	14			
Variablenhaushalt	1	15			
	1	16			
Alarm Logging	1	17			
1	1	18			
Tag Logging	1	19			

For the execution of the "ChangePassword" method the following tags are relevant:

- The system tag "@CurrentUserName" provides the currently logged in user.
- "PML_OLD_PASSWORD" is used to stored the old password.
- The tag "PML_NEW_PASSWORD" is used to hold the new password.

Additionally:

- "PML_REPEAT_NEW_PASSWORD" is used in the script to provide a location to store the repeated new password in order to make sure that the repeated new password matches
- "PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT" is used to hold the result of the ChangePassword operation.

The method provides the following return codes:

- 0: The password has been successfully changed
- -1: The user name provided was not found
- -2: The old password provided does not match the current login password
- -3: Password violates the complexity policy, is too short, or similar
- -4: Connection to PM-LOGON Runtime Webservice could not be established

- -5: The current password could not be decrypted
- -6: The user has no UID assigned
- -99: Unknown error

The corresponding error messages can be assigned within the script based on the return value of the function.

Detailed error messages will also be displayed in the diagnostic output of the PM-LOGON Runtime.

• Optional "errorcode", which can be used to indicate success or failure of the operation with a different color on the HMI screen.

The HMI screen could be built as shown in this example:

🕅 Graphics Designer - Char	igePassword.PdI			
Datei Bearbeiten Ansie	cht Anordnen Extras	Fenster	DataConnecto	r ?
🗅 🖻 📂 🛃 🕨 🐰	B B 9 9 8		🗉 🔒 者	∖ ? ∃ €
ChangePassword	• 5 8 🏏	98 M	4 4 1 1 2 3	<u>⊒</u> nt <u>u</u>
ChangePassword.Pdl ×				•
			· · · · · · · · · · ·	
Current user:				
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Current necessaries			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
current password:				
New password:			•	
Repeat new password:]:	
			<u> </u>	
		Chang	e Password	
Return value:	· ·			
	<u> </u>	· · · · · · ·	<u> </u>	
				1

The IO-fields have to be connected to the corresponding WinCC tags previously created. Finally two VB scripts need to be added.

6.3 VB Scripts

In order to access the COM-interface a script needs to be created.



For this purpose you can create a button that executes the following script in the OnClick Event:

Sub OnClick(ByVal Item)

```
Dim result
  Dim logonRuntime
  Dim changePwdResult
HmiRuntime.SmartTags("PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT_TEXT") = ""
HmiRuntime.SmartTags("PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT") = ""
'Create COM interface PMLogon.RuntimeCOMAccess
  Set logonRuntime = CreateObject("PMLogon.RuntimeCOMAccess")
'Initialize COM interface with URI the PM-LOGON Runtime Webservice
logonRuntime.Init("http://localhost:8090")
'Get current user's username
  Dim currentUserName
currentUserName = HmiRuntime.SmartTags("@CurrentUser")
  'Check, if current username contains the domain prefix and cut it off
  Dim userNameSplits :userNameSplits = Split(currentUserName,"/'
                                                                        ')
  If UBound(userNameSplits) > 0 Then
      currentUserName = userNameSplits(1)
  End If
'Check old and new passwords
  Dim oldpw :oldpw = HmiRuntime.SmartTags("PML_OLD_PASSWORD")
Dim newpw :newpw = HmiRuntime.SmartTags("PML_NEW_PASSWORD")
  Dim repeatpw :repeatpw = HmiRuntime.SmartTags("PML_REPEAT_NEW_PASSWORD")
  If newpw<>repeatpw Then
HmiRuntime SmartTags("PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT_TEXT") = "New passwords do not
                                                            match.
HmiRuntime.SmartTags("PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT") = -1
    Exit Sub
Siemens AG
PM-LOGON Manual.docx
28.01.2022
```

End If

Additionally a small script is required that resets the result value in the OnOpen event of the screen:



Sub OnOpen()

```
Dim changePwdResult
Set changePwdResult = HMIRuntime.Tags("PML_CHANGE_PWD_RESULT")
changePwdResult.Write" "
```

End Sub

6.4 Further methods PM-LOGON Runtime COM Interface

The PM-LOGON Runtime COM interface provides the following additional methods:

 AssignPassword(string username, string password): If only the user's current password is to be stored in PM-LOGON's user repository without changing it in Windows (since this may have already been done previously via operating system mechanisms), the method AssignPassword can be called. The method AssignPassword() must be supplied the user name and the current login password of the user. The supplied password is validated against the user repository before being assigned. If the supplied password does not match the login password, the password will not be applied.

These methods can only be used via the HTTPS web service of the PM-LOGON Runtime.

7 Key Management

7.1 Introduction

PM-LOGON uses a predefined key (<Embedded key>) to encrypt UID and password in the respective user repository. This key can be replaced by a user-defined key as of V1.8. The keys are managed via the configuration interface of the user repository in the section "Key Management".

Key Management			
Active key:	<embedded key=""></embedded>		
Staged key:	<not set=""></not>	Activate	
	Stage new Key Rekey Repository		

The configured keys of the repository are displayed here.

The "Active key" is the key currently used by the PM-LOGON Configurator to encrypt UID and password of a PM-LOGON user. "<Embedded key>" refers to the predefined key that is embedded in PM-LOGON.

"Staged key" refers to the key that has been prepared for future use.

A user-defined key is valid only for the particular user repository (Local Computer/Active Directory) for which it was created.

User-defined keys can only be used if all PM-LOGON Configurator and all PM-LOGON Runtime instances have been upgraded to V1.8 or higher.

The creation of a user-defined key is described using the "Active Directory" repository as an example but can be done in the same way for the "Local Computer" repository.

Procedure:

- 1. First, a user-defined key is generated via PM-LOGON Configurator and stored on a license dongle.
- 2. The license dongle is then used to distribute the user-defined key to all PM-LOGON Runtime instances.

Before the next steps it must be ensured that all PM-LOGON Runtime instances have received the new key, otherwise no user can be logged in.

3. After all PM-LOGON Runtime instances have received the user-defined key, the rekeying of the user credentials in the user repository is performed via the PM-LOGON Configurator. During this process, the UID and password of all PM-LOGON users are encrypted with the user-defined key.

If you have not yet created any PM-LOGON users in your repository or this is a new installation, no rekeying is required and you can proceed directly with the activation of the key.

4. After the rekeying process, the user-defined key must be activated for PM-LOGON to use the user-defined key to encrypt the UID and password.

From this point on PM-LOGON Configurator will only use the new key.

7.2 Staging a user-defined key

A user-defined key can be created in the PM-LOGON Configurator via the configuration interface of the user repository (Local Computer/Active Directory) in the section "Key Management". For this, a special key dongle is required, which is included in all deliveries of PM-LOGON base packages from V1.8.

If you are using an older version of PM-LOGON prior to version 1.8 and want to update to version 2.0, please contact the WinCC Competence Center Mannheim (mailto:winccaddon.automation@siemens.com) to obtain such a key dongle.

The first step is the so called "Staging". During "Staging", a new key is prepared for use in the PM-LOGON Configurator/Runtime.

To create the user-defined key, the key dongle must be connected to the computer running the PM-LOGON Configurator instance.

Open the configuration interface of your user repository via the menu "File->Configuration" in PM-LOGON Configurator.

Settings				\times
Configuration Activ	ive Directory Configurat	ion		
E Logon Devices	redentials			
Admitto USB Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader Do	omain:	testdomain.local		
BRP RFID Reader Us	semame:	Administrator	7	
Euchner EKS USB Reader Generic COM Port Reader Pa	assword:		7	
Generic PCSC Reader Mobile Login Web Service		Validate		
Teratron RFID Reader	mit Repository to Organ	izational Unit		
User Repositories Active Directory Or	rganizational Unit:		🗙	
Local Computer	ter visible Logon users	in Configurator		
Gr	roup:		-	
Pro	roperties			
U	ID property:	homePhone	/	
Pa	assword property:	pager	1	
Ex	tended property 1:		/	
Ex	stended property 2:		/	
		Validate		
Ke	ey Management			
Ac	ctive key:	<embedded key=""></embedded>		
St	aged key:	<not set=""></not>	Activate	
		Stage new Key Rekey Repository		
Ba	ackup/Restore Reposit	ory		
		Backup Repository Restore Backup		
				Close

Press the "Stage new Key ..." button to open the staging dialog:

If the key dongle is connected correctly, the ID of the dongle (HASP key) is displayed in the selection list (1).

Select the entry "Manually enter new staged key" in the selection list (2).

Enter your user-defined key in the input field (3) and press the "Stage" button (4) to accept the key as the "Staged key".



PM-LOGON Stage new ke	у	\times
Select HASP key:	1331166397 Refresh	1
Select source of new key:	Manually enter new staged key 2 ~	
Manually enter new staged You can manually enter a k	key ey, that will be staged in PM-LOGON and stored encrypted on the HASP key:	
#UserDefinedSecretKey!	3	
	4 Stage	
	Cancel	

The user-defined key is now stored in encrypted form on the key dongle and transferred to the configuration of the user repository as "Staged key".

If another key has already been stored on the key dongle, it will be overwritten by the new key. The previous key is moved to the list of previous keys. The last 10 keys are stored in this list. The list can be viewed via the entry "Previous key on HASP key". You can also use a previous key as a "Staged key" via this function.

In the display field for the "Staged key" in the section "Key Management" of the user repository, the hash code of the key is now displayed to make it easier to identify.

Key Management Active key:	<embedded kev=""></embedded>				
Staged key:	Staged key: 4512dc27d2e434ac6dd96e7d63593f06				
	Stage new Key Rekey Repository				

After the new user-defined key has been created, it must first be distributed to all PM-LOGON Runtime instances and, if existent, to all further PM-LOGON Configurator instances, before it can be activated.

7.3 Distributing the user-defined key

After creation, the user-defined key must be distributed to all PM-LOGON Runtime instances and, if existent, to all further PM-LOGON Configurator instances, before it can be activated. PM-LOGON Runtime for Panel instances are excluded from this, they do not need a user-defined key.

For the transfer of the user-defined key, the key dongle on which the user-defined key has been stored, must be connected to the computer on which the PM-LOGON Configurator/Runtime instance is operated.

Then, open the configuration interface of the respective user repository via the menu "File->Configuration" in PM-LOGON Configurator.

If the key dongle is connected correctly, the ID of the dongle (HASP key) is displayed in the selection list (1).

Select the entry "Stored key on HASP key" in the selection list (2) "Stored key on HASP key": The user-defined key is now displayed in the display field (3).

PM-LOGON Stage new key	/		×
Select HASP key:	1331166397	1~	Refresh
Select source of new key:	Stored key on HASP key	2 ~	
Stored key on HASP key The HASP key can contain here. The hash value of the	a key already staged by another PM-LO key is shown below:	GON instance. This key car	n be imported
40120C2/0204348C60096	002023800	4	Stage
		[Cancel

Press the "Stage" button (4) to accept the key as a "Staged key".

In the display field for the "Staged key" in the section "Key Management" of the user repository, the hash code of the key is now displayed to make it easier to identify.

Key Management		
Active key:	<embedded key=""></embedded>	
Staged key:	4512dc27d2e434ac6dd96e7d63593f06	Activate
	Stage new Key Rekey Repository	

From this point on, PM-LOGON Runtime will use both keys to find the user assigned to the UID in the user repository. This way it is ensured that a user can be logged in, even after rekeying the user repository.

Proceed in this way for all further PM-LOGON Runtime and PM-LOGON Configurator instances.

7.4 Rekeying the user repository

If the user repository already contains PM-LOGON users, you must perform the rekeying process. During this process, the credentials stored for each PM-LOGON user are decrypted using the previous key and then re-encrypted using the new key.

Before the next steps it must be ensured that all PM-LOGON runtime instances have been upgraded to PM-LOGON V2.0 or higher and have received and staged the new key, otherwise no user logon can take place.

For the rekeying process, the key dongle must be connected to the computer running the PM-LOGON Configurator instance.

It is strongly recommended to backup the user repository before rekeying as described in chapter 8.1.

Open the configuration interface of the respective user repository via the menu "File->Configuration" in the PM-LOGON Configurator.

Key Management		
Active key:	<embedded key=""></embedded>	
Staged key:	4512dc27d2e434ac6dd96e7d63593f06 Activate	
	Stage new Key Rekey Repository 2	

Make sure that the display field for the "Staged key" (1) shows the hash code of the key you created earlier.

Now press the "Rekey Repository ..." button (2) to open the rekeying dialog.

ekey Reposito	ry			—	
Wamir Before have o It is str This pr Errors	ng: rekeying your rep deployed the curre ongly recommend rocess is not rever	pository, make sure ent staged key to e ed to backup your rsible.	that you have installed the current version of PM-LOGON Runtime on e ach PM-LOGON Runtime instance. repository before starting the rekeying process.	ach machi	ine and that yo
Usemame	Last Name	First Name	Errortext		
				Valid	late Repository
Copy Errors to	Clipboard			Sta	art Rekeying

First, validate the user repository by clicking the "Validate Repository" button.

The validation of the repository ensures that the credentials of the PM-LOGON users can be decrypted with the current key ("Active key").

If errors occur during the validation of the repository, they are displayed in the section "Errors". It is recommended to fix any errors that may have occurred before the actual rekeying.

The list of errors can be copied to the clipboard using the "Copy Errors to Clipboard" button, in order to be able to store them in a text file, for example.



key Reposito	ry			_		\times
Wamii Before have o It is str This p	ng: rekeying your rep deployed the curre rongly recommend rocess is not reve	pository, make sum ent staged key to ed to backup you rsible.	e that you have installed the current version of PM-LOGON Runtime on each each PM-LOGON Runtime instance. r repository before starting the rekeying process.	ı machin	e and that	you
Usemame	Last Name	First Name	Errortext			_
Copy Errors to	Clipboard			Valida Sta	ate Reposito rt Rekeying	ory J
dation of rep	ository complet	ted successfully.				

After successful validation, you can start the actual rekeying process. To do this, press the "Start Rekeying" button.

The rekeying process is now executed. Wait until it has finished.

If errors occur during the rekeying process, they are listed in the section "Errors". In this case, correct the errors and run the rekeying process again.



ey Reposito	Ŋ			_		>
Wamir Before have d It is str This pr	ng: rekeying your rep leployed the curre ongly recommend rocess is not reve	pository, make su ent staged key to led to backup you rsible.	re that you have installed the current version of PM-LOGON Runtime on each each PM-LOGON Runtime instance. Ir repository before starting the rekeying process.	machin	e and that	уо
Jsemame	Last Name	First Name	Errortext			_
						or
nov Errore to	Clipboard				Close	or

Now close the rekeying dialog with the "Close" button.

If rekeying was successful, the "Staged key" will be activated automatically. The rekeying process is now finished, PM-LOGON Configurator uses the new key for decryption and encryption.

If you run further PM-LOGON Configurator instances, you must activate the "Staged key" there manually (see chapter 7.5).

PM-LOGON Runtime will continue to use both keys even after rekeying. We therefore recommend activating the key in all PM-LOGON Runtime instances as soon as possible after rekeying the user repository, so that PM-LOGON Runtime does not use the old key anymore.

7.5 Activating the user-defined key

The "Staged key" must be activated manually in the following cases:

- If this is a new installation or if no PM-LOGON users are stored in the user repository yet, the "Staged key" can be activated directly without performing the rekeying process first.
- If several PM-LOGON Configurator instances are operated, the "Staged key" must be activated manually in all other instances after rekeying by one of the instances, so that they also use the new key afterwards.

Open the configuration interface of the respective user repository via the menu "File->Configuration" in PM-LOGON Configurator or PM LOGON Runtime.

Make sure that the display field "Staged key" (1) shows the hash code of the key you have created before.

Now press the "Activate" button (2) to activate the "Staged key".

Key Management				
Active key:	<embedded key=""></embedded>			
Staged key:	4512dc27d2e434ac6dd96e7	Activate 2		
	Stage new Key	Rekey Repository	-	

The hash code of the "Staged key" is displayed in the display field for the "Active key" (3) after activation.

Key Management		
Active key:	4512dc27d2e434ac6dd96e7d63593f06	3
Staged key:	<not set=""></not>	Activate
	Stage new Key Rekey Repository	

8 Backup/Restore of a user repository

8.1 Create a backup of the user repository

You can create a backup of the user repository in the section "Backup/Restore Repository" of the user repository configuration interface.

The credentials stored for a user are encrypted and exported to an xml file.

This file can be used to restore the state of the user repository at the time the backup was created.

It is strongly recommended to create a backup of the user repository before rekeying.

Open the configuration interface of the respective user repository via the menu "File->Configuration" in the PM-LOGON Configurator.

Press the "Backup Repository" button in the section "Backup/Restore Repository".

Backup/Restore Repository							
	Backup Repository	Restore Backup					

In the next step, select a file name and a location to save the backup.

8.2 Restore a backup of the user repository

For the rekeying process, the key dongle must be connected to the computer on which the PM-LOGON Configurator instance is operated.

Via the configuration interface of the user repository you can restore a backup of the user repository in the section "Backup/Restore Repository".

Open the configuration interface of the respective user repository via the menu "File->Configuration" in the PM-LOGON Configurator.

Press the "Restore Repository" button in the "Backup/Restore Repository" section.

- Backun/Restore Reposito	nv.			
buokup/ neatore nepoate	<i>"</i>			
			N	
	Backup Repository	Restore Backup		

In the following file dialog, select the backup file you want to restore and open it.
	Backup file								
File:		C:\TEMP\User	RepositoryExpor	t.xml					
Active Key	y in file:	c8d641352b91	2258e34c036ff3	¥88802	In repository:	c8d641352b91225	58e34c036ff3f88802		
Staged Ke	ey in file:				In repository:	:		70	
Properties									
UID prope	erty:	homePhone		~					
Paseword	property:	nanor			•				
	property.	pager		~					
Extended	property 1:			~					
Extended	property 2:			~					
Users									
State	Usemame	UID	Password	ExtendedPro	perty1 E	xtendedProperty2	Errortext		^
	michael	1DAD0D3F	•••••						
	PMLUser0	PMLUser0	•••••						
	PMLUser1	PMLUser1	•••••						
	PMLUser2	PMLUser2	•••••						
	PMLUser3	PMLUser3							
	PMLUser3 PMLUser4	PMLUser3 PMLUser4	•••••						
	PMLUser3 PMLUser4 PMLUser5	PMLUser3 PMLUser4 PMLUser5	•••••						
	PMLUser3 PMLUser4 PMLUser5 PMLUser6	PMLUser3 PMLUser4 PMLUser5 PMLUser6	•••••						
	PMLUser3 PMLUser4 PMLUser5 PMLUser6	PMLUser3 PMLUser4 PMLUser5 PMLUser6	•••••						v

The following dialog shows the keys that are currently assigned in the repository (2), as well as the keys from the backup file that were assigned at the time of the backup (1).

For the Active Directory repository, the user attributes to which the data should be restored can be selected in the Properties section. The attributes selected when opening the backup correspond to the configured attributes of the user repository at the time of the backup.

If the current "Active key" in the user repository is different from the "Active key" of the backup, PM-LOGON will try to decrypt the data using the list of predecessor keys on the key dongle and reencrypt it using the current "Active key".

No changes are made to the current "Staged key" of the user repository by restoring the backup.

Make sure that no errors are displayed in the list of users. You can filter faulted records using the "Show Errors Only" checkbox.

Press the "Import" button to import the users.

9 PM-LOGON Server

9.1 Introduction

PM-LOGON Server is a stand-alone application and basically has the same functionality as PM-LOGON Runtime. Unlike PM-LOGON Runtime, PM-LOGON Server can connect multiple Logon Devices. A logon to a device can be forwarded to multiple target systems, but unlike PM-LOGON Runtime, multiple target systems of the same type (e.g. OPC UA Server) can be addressed. Readers and target systems can be connected via so-called logon mappings, e.g. the logon to a reader can be passed on to several target systems as well as the logon to different readers can be passed on to the same target system.

Furthermore, a PM-LOGON Runtime instance can be used both as a logon device and as a logon provider with PM-LOGON Server. This means that the logon to a PM-LOGON Runtime instance can also be propagated to other PM-LOGON Runtime instances.

PM-LOGON Server supports all Logon Devices, which are also supported by PM-LOGON Runtime.

Furthermore, all Logon Providers of PM-LOGON Runtime are supported except SIMATIC Logon. Since PM-LOGON Server is operated exclusively as a service and an interactive user is required to log on to SIMATIC Logon, it is not possible to log on to SIMATIC Logon via PM-LOGON Server itself.

PM-LOGON Server must be licensed via a corresponding hardware or software license.

PM-LOGON Server			- 🗆 ×
File Help			
Server			
i 🕨 📕 🕌 🛅			
Communication			
Timestamp	Туре	Source	Message ^
25/01/2022 14:51:31.178		PM-LOGON Server Service Logon Device <admitto am="" server=""></admitto>	Connecting to Admitto Reader on port <com3></com3>
25/01/2022 14:51:31.178	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Logon Provider <local runtime=""></local>	Loading PM-LOGON Logon Device configuration from file <
25/01/2022 14:51:31.193	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Logon Provider <local runtime=""></local>	PM-LOGON Logon Device configuration loaded.
25/01/2022 14:51:31.193	0	PM-LOGON Server Service	Creating User Repository instance
25/01/2022 14:51:31.193	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Logon Device <admitto am="" server=""></admitto>	Connection to Admitto Reader on port <com3> established</com3>
25/01/2022 14:51:31.193	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Logon Device <admitto am="" server=""></admitto>	Admitto Reader on port <com3> connected.</com3>
25/01/2022 14:51:31.193	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Default User Repository	Loading Active Directory Repository configuration from file <
25/01/2022 14:51:31.193	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Default User Repository	Active Directory Repository configuration loaded.
25/01/2022 14:51:31.365	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Default User Repository	PrincipalContext created successfully, connected server: <[
25/01/2022 14:51:31.506	0	PM-LOGON Server Service Default User Repository	Repository <active directory=""> connected.</active>
25/01/2022 14:51:31.506	0	PM-LOGON Server Service	Stopping HTTPS Web Service
25/01/2022 14:51:31.506	0	PM-LOGON Server Service	Starting HTTPS Web Service on Port 9095
25/01/2022 14:51:32.084	0	PM-LOGON Server Service	SignalR - OnClientConnected(4f34c156-6e91-488f-b640-34 🤟
<			>

9.2 Application Window

The user interface of PM-LOGON Server can be accessed via the corresponding entry in the start menu.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022

In the main window of the application program runtime information of PM-LOGON Server is displayed. Using the individual buttons in the toolbar PM-LOGON Server can be started ("Start") and stopped ("Stop") and the list of program flow information can be cleared ("Clear Log"). Via the button "AutoScroll" the AutoScroll function can be activated/deactivated.

9.3 Configuration

Open the configuration of PM-LOGON Server via the menu File->Configuration. The configuration dialog of PM-LOGON Server will be opened.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration			Х
Configuration C	General Webservice Certificates Logging Security Require password to access configuration Password: Set Hide UIDs in log Set Reject login of disabled user accounts Log off Delay Delay log off for \$econds		

Via the tree structure on the left side of the configuration dialog you can navigate within the different configuration sections.

Via the "Configuration" element you reach the general configuration of PM-LOGON Server.

The configuration of "PM-LOGON Server" can be protected against unauthorized access. If the checkbox "Require password to access configuration" is activated, a password can be assigned, which must be entered when opening the configuration. The password can be changed using the "Set" button.

Since read UIDs from RFID cards can represent information that is worth protecting, these UIDs are made unrecognizable in the diagnostic output if the "Hide UIDs in log" checkbox has been selected.

If the "Reject disabled users" checkbox is selected, PM-LOGON will reject logins for user accounts that are disabled in the user repository (e.g. Active Directory).

Using the "Delay log off for x seconds" setting in the "Log off Delay" section, the log off can be delayed for up to 15 seconds after the card is removed from the reader field. To delay the logoff, the option "Log off current user" has to be selected as "Log off behavior" in the respective Logon Provider and the PM-LOGON reader used signals the removal of the card from the field. If the card leaves the reader field and returns within the set time period, the log off process is aborted and the previously logged on user remains logged on. If another card is brought into the field within the set time period after leaving the reader field of a card, the logout process is aborted and the user is logged in to this card.

Via the "Webservice" tab you can configure the web service of PM-LOGON Server, which is especially necessary for logging on to panels via PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels.

Via the "Certificates" tab you can manage the security certificates that PM-LOGON Server uses for secure data exchange with OPC UA servers and other PM-LOGON Runtime instances.

The "Logging" tab can be used to activate the output of program flow information in log files for diagnostic purposes.

The "Logon Devices" element takes you to the configuration of the connected readers.

The "User Repositories" element takes you to the overview of the supported user administrations, below which are the configuration sections of the individual user repositories.

The "Logon Providers" element takes you to the configuration of the connected logon services.

The "Logon Mapping Groups" element takes you to the configuration of the logon groups.

PM-LOGON Server can be extended by additional readers, user administrations and logon services via a plugin system.

9.3.1 Configuration of the Webservices

General Webservice (Certificates Logging
Webservice	
Enable Webservice:	
Port:	8095
HTTPS Webservice	
Enable Webservice:	
Port:	9095 🚔 Register Port

The PM-LOGON Server web service is required if it is operated together with other remote PM-LOGON Runtime or PM-LOGON Runtime for Panels instances.

PM-LOGON Server provides both HTTP and HTTPS web service.

PM-LOGON for Panels instances always use HTTP web service, for connection between PM-LOGON Runtime and Server instances only HTTPS web service is supported.

To establish an HTTPS connection, a port must be reserved to link it to the PM-LOGON application certificate. The default port is already reserved by the installation of PM-LOGON Server, so that the port only needs to be reserved via the "Register Port" button when a change is made.

Activate the respective web service via the corresponding checkbox.



9.3.2 Certificate management

eneral Webservice Certificates Logging		
Application Certificate		
Subject: DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGON	Server	
Thumbprint: C785C0ADFE00B93C3C63A3087461	DADC8A2EC864	
Rejected		
Thumbprint Subject Issued By Valid	Until	
Accept Delete		
Accepted		
Thumbprint	Subject	Issued By
53EF282BDC245C00F217D97C8D76A27BCF1F9BF8	DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGON_Runtime	DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGO
83C9B3ADB473AE4FBB30CEA252D02A47CE35FA53	DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=TestServerWebService	DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=TestServer
EEB32AADA1F431699399FB475D98600071A1E3CF	CN=Integration Objects UA Server Simulator	CN=Integration Objects UA Server Sin
998EF33519AA8B4669D79EFFF688F407376C6232	DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGON_Server	DC=PRODDEV2020, CN=PM-LOGO
37AF766C108241658A46C3B04F5CC5815A51300D	CN=PM-LOGON_Server_OPCUA	CN=PM-LOGON_Server_OPCUA
<		>
Reject Delete		
Refresh		

Via the configuration section "Certificates" you can manage the security certificates, PM-LOGON Server uses for secure data exchange with OPC UA servers and other PM-LOGON Runtime instances.

In the "Application Certificate" section the subject and thumbprint of the application certificate of PM-LOGON Server are specified.

In the section "Rejected" all certificates of communication partners are listed, which have not yet been accepted by PM-LOGON Server and thus have been classified as trustworthy. Via the buttons "Accept" these certificates can be accepted and thus transferred to the section "Accepted".

The "Accepted" section lists all certificates that have been accepted by PM-LOGON Server and thus classified as trustworthy. Already accepted certificates can be rejected by clicking the "Reject" button.

Via the button "Delete" certificates can be deleted from the sections "Rejected" and "Delete".

9.3.3 Diagnosis

PM-LOGON Server logs events during the program execution to the Windows event log. The events are logged under the Event Log "Process Management" system.

File Action View Help 	🛃 Event Viewer			
 	File Action View Help			
Event Viewer (Local) Process Management System Number of events: 29.394 Image: Custom Views Source Source Image: Custom Views Source PM-LOGON Runtime User Repository Image: Custom Views Source Source PM-LOGON Runtime User Repository Image: Custom Views Source Source PM-LOGON Runtime User Repository PM-LOGON Runtime User Repository Image: Custom Views Source Source Source Source Source PM-LOGON Runtime User Repository PM-LOGON Source Service Image: Custom Views Source Source Source Source	🗢 🔿 🙍 📰			
	File Action View Help Image: Second Sec	Process Management System Level Information Information Firror Error Information Information Information Information Information Information Information Information Event 0, PM-LOGON Runtime Use General Details PM-LOGON Server State Chains	Date and Time 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:52:08 25/01/2022 15:51:44	Source PM-LOGON Runtime User Repository PM-LOGON Server Service PM-LOGON Server User Repository PM-LOGON Server Service

The "Logging" tab in the configuration can be used to additionally activate the logging of program run information in log files ("Enable Logging").



General Webservice	Certificates Logging
Logfiles	
Enable Logging:	
Log Level:	All
Logfile Folder:	C:\ProgramData\Siemens\Process Management\PM-LOGON\Server\Diagnosis

The scope of the logged program run information can be set via the "Log Level" drop-down list:

- All: All messages
- Error: Only errors
- Warning: Warnings and errors
- Information: Information messages, warnings and errors
- Verbose:
 Detail information, Information messages, warnings and errors

File logging should only be activated for diagnosing problems and should not be activated permanently. The size of the log files is limited to 10MB and the log files are automatically deleted after 7 days. The folder where the log files are stored can be opened by clicking the link to the right of the label "Logfile Folder".

9.3.4 Configuration of Logon Devices

PM-LOGON Server Configuration					×		
	i 🖶 🗙						
Good Devices	Name Type						
Active Directory	Admitto-A USB Reader Admitto USB Reader				~		
Local Computer	Admitto-C Reader Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader						
Logon Providers							
Line 2							
	Admitto Reader Configuration						
	Configuration						
	COM Port: COM3						
	Reverse UID:						
	Use phg_crypt Protocol:						
	Test reader						
	Current UID:						
	Connect						



The "Logon Devices" section in the tree structure of the configuration interface takes you to the overview of configured readers. You can use the buttons in the upper section of the list to add further readers or delete existing readers.

Assign a unique designation for the Logon Device in the "Name" field of the corresponding line. Use the drop-down list in the "Type" column to specify the type of the Logon Device

Below the list of Logon Devices the configuration interface corresponding to the type of Logon Device is displayed, which can be used to configure the plugin for the reader.

The configuration for the respective Logon Device types can be taken in detail from chapter 3.2.3 ff.

9.3.4.1 PM-LOGON Runtime as a Logon Device

A PM-LOGON Runtime instance can also be used as a Logon Device. This allows e.g. the reader at the local PM-LOGON Runtime to be connected to PM-LOGON Server or a logon at a PM-LOGON Runtime to be passed on to further Logon Providers.

For this purpose, the HTTPS web service of PM-LOGON Server must be activated and configured first (see chapter 9.3.1).

General Webservice	Certificates Logging
Webservice	
Enable Webservice	
Port:	8095
HTTPS Webservice	
Enable Webservice	
Port:	9095 🚔 Register Port

After that the PM-LOGON Runtime instance must be connected to PM-LOGON Server. For this purpose, the remote repository must be used as the user repository in the configuration of PM-LOGON Runtime (see chapter 4.3.14).

After a successful connection the PM-LOGON Runtime instance registers itself with PM-LOGON Server. In the list of Logon Devices the PM-LOGON Runtime instance is automatically added as a new entry.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration					\times	
Configuration	- + ×					
Logon Devices Ser Repositories	Name	Туре				
Active Directory	Admitto-A USB Reader	Admitto USB Reader			~	
Local Computer	Admitto-C Reader	Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader				
Logon Providers	PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	PM-LOGON Runtime			~	
	PM-LOGON Runtime Configuration Configuration Client ID: PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1					

9.3.5 Configuring the User Repository

PM-LOGON Server supports Active Directory or local user management as a user repository. Details about the configuration of the respective user repository can be found in chapter 4.3.12 and Kapitel 4.3.13.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration				×
le Configuration	User Repositories			
E Logon Devices	Repository Type	Description		
Active Directory	Active Directory	Active Directory User Repository		
Local Computer	Local Computer	Local Computer Repository		
Logon Providers Logon Mapping Groups Line 1 Line 2				

The user repository to be used must be activated through the context menu of the respective plugin.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration
 Configuration Logon Devices User Repositories Active Directory Local C Set as default Logon Providers Logon Mapping Groups Line 2

9.3.6 Configuration of the Logon Providers

PM-LOGON Server Configuration						×
 Configuration Logon Devices Iser Repositories Active Directory 	i 🖶 🗙					
	Name		Туре			
	OPC UA Server 1		OPC and SOAP Acce		~	
Local Computer	PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1		PM-LOGON Runtime			~
Logon Providers □ ↓ Logon Mapping Groups ● Line 2	OPC and SOAP Access Configuration					
	l og off Behaviour					
	Action, when card leaves reader:	Do nothing	\sim			
	HMI Runtime Set password in password pron Set credentials in open login wi Replace password with Access HMI Runtime via:	npt of User view indow OPC UA Server	~	Groups separator:	redentials	

The "Logon Providers" section in the tree structure of the configuration interface takes you to the overview of configured logon providers. You can use the buttons in the upper section of the list to add further logon providers or delete existing logon providers.

Assign a unique name for the logon device in the "Name" field of the corresponding configuration line.

Use the drop-down list in the "Type" column to specify the type of logon provider.

Below the list of Logon Providers, the configuration interface corresponding to the type of Logon Provider is displayed, which can be used to configure the plugin for the Logon Provider.

The configuration for the respective logon provider types can be found in detail in chapter 4.3.17 ff.

9.3.6.1 PM-LOGON Runtime as a Logon Provider

A PM-LOGON Runtime instance can also be addressed as a Logon Provider. This can be used, for example, to propagate a logon to a reader or another PM-LOGON Runtime instance.

For this purpose, the HTTPS web service of PM-LOGON Server must first be activated and configured (see Chapter 9.3.1).

General Webservice	Certificates Logging
Webservice	
Enable Webservice:	
Port:	8095
HTTPS Webservice	
Enable Webservice:	
Port:	9095 🖨 Register Port

After that the PM-LOGON Runtime instance must be connected to PM-LOGON Server. For this purpose, the remote repository must be used as the user repository in the configuration of PM-LOGON Runtime (see chapter 4.3.14).

6 Settings		×
Configuration C	Remote PM-LOGON Runtime Configuration Connection URI: https://192.168.0.101:9095 Check Second URI: Check Remote is PM-LOGON Server Client ID: PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	

After a successful connection the PM-LOGON Runtime instance registers itself with PM-LOGON Server. In the list of logon providers the PM-LOGON Runtime instance is automatically added as a new entry.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration					×				
Configuration									
Logon Devices Ser Repositories	Name	Туре							
Active Directory	OPC UA Server 1	OPC and SOAP Access		~					
Local Computer	PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	PM-LOGON Runtime							
 Logon Mapping Groups Line 2 	PM-LOGON Runtime Configuration Configuration Client ID: PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1								

9.3.7 Configuration of Logon Mapping Groups

Logon Mapping Groups can be used to configure which logon events are transmitted to which logon providers.

Within a Logon Mapping Group it is defined which Logon Devices are connected to which Logon Provider(s).

PM-LOGON Server Configuration						
Configuration Elogon Devices Ver Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Logon Providers Logon Mapping Groups Line 1 Line 2	i 🕂 🗙					
	Enabled	Name	Description			
		Line 1	Logon Mappings of Line 1			
		Line 2	Logon Mappings of Line 2			

The "Logon Mapping Groups" section in the tree structure of the configuration interface takes you to the overview of the defined logon mapping groups. You can use the buttons in the upper part of the list to add further logon mapping groups or delete existing logon mapping groups. Assign a unique name for the logon mapping group in the "Name" field of the corresponding configuration line. In the "Description" field, you can enter a description for the logon mapping group.

Individual mapping groups can be activated or deactivated via the checkboxes in the "Enabled" column.

9.3.8 Configuration of Logon Mappings

To configure the logon mappings within a logon mapping group, select the corresponding entry of the logon mapping group in the tree structure below the "Logon Mapping Groups" section.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration									×	
 Configuration Logon Devices User Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Logon Providers Logon Mapping Groups Line 1 Line 2 										
	Enabled	Logon Device Name		Туре	Logon Provider		Туре	Description		
		Admitto-A USB Reader	\sim	Admitto USB Reader	OPC UA Server 1	\sim	OPC and SOAP Access			
		Admitto-A USB Reader	\sim	Admitto USB Reader	PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	\sim	PM-LOGON Runtime			

Using the buttons above the list of logon mappings you can add new logon mappings or delete existing logon mappings.

Adding a Logon Mapping:

PM-LOGON Server Configuration		
 Configuration Logon Devices User Repositories Active Directory Local Computer Logon Providers Logon Mapping Groups Line 1 Line 2 	Add ne Add multiple Addr v	Tı Ad Ad

You can add a single logon mapping via the "Add" menu item. A new line is added to the list of logon mappings for the logon mapping.

The logon mapping determines which logon device is connected to which logon provider. Via the selection lists in the column "Logon Device Name" and "Logon Provider" the corresponding Logon Device or the corresponding Logon Provider can be selected.

Via the menu item "Add Multiple" several logon mappings can be added in one step:

Create Mu	reate Multiple Logon Mappings					
Logon Dev	ices Logon Providers					
Selected	Name	Туре				
	Admitto-A USB Reader	Admitto USB Reader				
	Admitto-C Reader	Admitto-C TCP/IP Reader				
	PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	PM-LOGON Runtime				
				0		
		(ureate	Cance	9	

First, on the "Logon Devices" page, in the "Selected" column, select the logon devices that you want to connect to corresponding logon providers.

Siemens AG PM-LOGON Manual.docx 28.01.2022

Then, on the Logon Providers page, select the logon providers to which you want to connect the previously selected logon devices.

Create Mu	Itiple Logon Mappings				×
Logon Dev	ices Logon Providers				
Selected	Name	Туре			
	OPC UA Server 1	OPC and SOAP Access			
	PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	PM-LOGON Runtime			
	OPC UA Server 2	OPC and SOAP Access			
				-	
			Create	Cano	sel

When you confirm your selection with "Create", the associated Logon Mappings are created. Each selected logon device will be connected to each selected logon provider.

PM-LOGON Server Configuration								_		×	
Configuration Logon Devices Active Directory Local Computer	+ - ×										
	Enabled	Logon Device Name	Туре	Logon Provider		Туре	Descrip	tion			
		Admitto-A USB Reader	\sim	Admitto USB Reader	OPC UA Server 1	\sim	OPC and SOAP Access				
		Admitto-A USB Reader	\sim	Admitto USB Reader	OPC UA Server 2	\sim	OPC and SOAP Access				
Logon Providers Logon Mapping Groups		PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	\sim	PM-LOGON Runtime	OPC UA Server 1	\sim	OPC and SOAP Access				
Line 1		PM-LOGON Runtime on Host 1	\sim	PM-LOGON Runtime	OPC UA Server 2	\sim	OPC and SOAP Access				
• Line 2											

Individual mappings can be activated or deactivated via the checkboxes in the "Enabled" column.